
 
 
 
BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES 
 
Sarah Hoffman 
Board Chair  
 
Michael Janz 
Board Vice-Chair 
 
Sherry Adams 
Orville Chubb 
Michelle Draper 
Ken Gibson 
Nathan Ip 
Cheryl Johner 
Ray Martin 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Edmonton School District No. 7 
One Kingsway 

Edmonton, Alberta 
 
 McCauley Chambers 
 Board Meeting #2 Tuesday, November 26, 2013 
   2:00 p.m. 
 

A.  O Canada   
 
B.  Roll Call  

 
C.  Approval of the Agenda 
 
D.  Communications from the Board Chair  

 
E.  Communications from the Superintendent of Schools 

 
F.  Approval of the Minutes 

 
1. DRAFT - Board Meeting #27 – September 17, 2013 

 
2. DRAFT – Organizational Board Meeting – November 5, 2013 

 
G.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives 
 (NOTE:  Pre-registration with the Board Office [780-429-8021] 
 is required by 4:30 p.m. Monday, November 25, 2013 to speak under 
 this item.) 
  
H.  Reports: 

 
3. Report #1 of the Caucus Committee (From the Meeting Held 

November 5, 2013) 
  (Recommendation) 

 
4. Edmonton Public Schools' Combined Three Year Education Plan 

and Annual Education Results Report 
(Feedback) 

 
5. Review of 2012-2013 Superintendent of Schools Area Results 
 (Information) 

 
6. Bereavements 
 (Information with Introduction) 

 
I.  Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports 

 
J.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives - 5:00 p.m. 
 (NOTE:  Pre-registration with the Board Office [780-429-8021] 
 is required by 4:30 p.m. Monday, November 25, 2013 to speak under 
 this item.) 

 
 



 
- 2 - 

 
 

K.  Trustee and Board Requests for Information 
 

L.   Notices of Motion 
 

M.   Meeting Dates 
 
N.  Adjournment 
 

 



MINUTE BOOK 

1 
September 17, 2013 

 

Board Meeting #27 
 
Minutes of the Board Meeting of the Trustees of the Edmonton School District No. 7 of the 
Province of Alberta held in McCauley Chambers in the Centre for Education on Tuesday, 
September 17, 2013 at 12:00 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

 Trustees 
 

 

Leslie Cleary 
David Colburn 
Sarah Hoffman 

Michael Janz 
Cheryl Johner 

Heather MacKenzie 

Catherine Ripley 
Ken Shipka 

Christopher Spencer 
  

Officials 
 

 

Diana Bolan 
Jim Davies 

David Fraser 
 

Mark Liguori 
Ron MacNeil 

Kathy Muhlethaler 
 

Darrel Robertson 
Sandra Stoddard 

 

Board Chair:  Sarah Hoffman  Recording Secretary:  Manon Fraser 
 
A.    O Canada    
 
Staff Group Representatives 
 
Edmonton Public Teachers – Mr. Nels Olsen, President 
CUPE Local 3550 – Rosemary Kostiuk, First Vice President 
 
B. Roll Call:  (12:00 p.m.) 
 
The Superintendent advised that all Trustees were present. 
 
The Superintendent introduced students from Amiskwaciy Academy who performed the 
traditional morning drum song titled Our Creator We Thank You which Amiskwaciy 
Academy begins each school day with. The morning song is led by Elder Francis 
Whiskeyjack, staff and student drummers. The drum is used by males and the traditional 
rattle is used by females. All drums and rattles are made at Amiskwaciy Academy under 
the supervision of Elder Whiskeyjack. The shirts worn by the drummers are called 
Ribbon shirts and are handmade locally in Edmonton.  



MINUTE BOOK 

2 
September 17, 2013 

 

The Superintendent noted the performance is to commemorate the last public Board 
meeting of the three-year term of the 98th Board of Trustees and to recognize each 
Trustee's significant contribution to Edmonton Public Schools. 
 
Elder Francis Whiskeyjack presented a blanket, a traditional gift of welcome, to 
Superintendent Robertson as the new Superintendent.   
 
C. Approval of the Agenda 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Janz: 
 “That the agenda for the September 17, 2013 board meeting be approved as 

printed.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
D. Communications from the Board Chair 
 
The Board Chair advised that Mr. Edgar Schmidt, Ms Constance Murphy and Mr. Paul 
Gagne were present, along with seventy-three Bachelor of Education (After Degree) 
students from the Education 551 (Educational Administration) course at Concordia 
University College of Alberta.  The Education 551 course examines the complex systems 
within public education – the organizational, legal, and social structures that are evident 
in contemporary schools.  The Education 551 students observe a public school board 
meeting to assist them in understanding the governance structures in public education in 
Alberta. 
 
E. Communications from the Superintendent of Schools – None 
 
F. Minutes 
 
 1.  Board Meeting #25 – September 3, 2013 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Johner: 
 “That the minutes of Board Meeting #25 held September 3, 2013 be 

approved as printed.”   (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
 2.  Board Meeting #26 – September 10, 2013 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Cleary: 
 “That the minutes of Board Meeting #26 held September 10, 2013 be 

approved as printed.”     (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
G.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives – None 



MINUTE BOOK 

3 
September 17, 2013 

 

 
H. Reports 
 
 3.  Motion re Representative, Democratic and Participatory Governance 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Spencer: 
 “That the Edmonton Public School Board resolve to develop and implement 

practices that will support a transformation to a more representative, 
democratic and participatory model of governance.” 

 
MOVED BY Trustee Hoffman: 
 “That the motion be referred to the 2013-2014 District Priorities and 

Governance Committee to review governance models that best align with the 
Education Act (which comes into effect in 2015) and existing legislation.” 

 
The Board Chair called the question on the Referral Motion. 
 
IN FAVOUR:  Trustees Cleary, Colburn, Hoffman, Janz, Johner, Ripley and 

Shipka 
 
OPPOSED:   Trustees MacKenzie and Spencer 
 
The Referral Motion was CARRIED. 
 
 4.  Report #15 of the Caucus Committee (From the Meeting Held June 11, 

2013) 
 
MOVED BY Trustee MacKenzie: 
 “1.  That Report #15 of the Caucus Committee from the meeting held 

June 11, 2013 be received and considered.” 
 
The Board Chair called the question. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Cleary: 
 “2.  That the new Trustees’ Handbook be adopted and replace the current 

Trustees’ Manual.” 
 



MINUTE BOOK 

4 
September 17, 2013 

 

 
MOVED BY Trustee Spencer: 

 “That Section 14.1.4 - Media Requests for Comments or Interviews of the 
Trustees’ Handbook be amended by adding the following as a third point: 
•  In general, as Trustees are public officials, democratically elected and 

responsive to their constituents, they should make the effort to be 
forthcoming with members of the media.” 

 
The Board Chair called the question on the Amendment. 
 
IN FAVOUR:  Trustees Cleary, Colburn, Hoffman, Janz, Johner, MacKenzie, 

Ripley and Spencer 
 
OPPOSED:   Trustee Shipka 
 
The Amendment was CARRIED. 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Spencer: 
 “In Section 14.1.5, Social Media be amended by inserting the following as a 

first point: 
• Trustees are encouraged to engage in social media to receive feedback on 

policy proposals and model the principles of open and transparent 
governance and inclusiveness in public education.” 

The Board Chair called the question on the Amendment. 
 
IN FAVOUR:  Trustees Cleary, Colburn, Hoffman, Janz, Johner, MacKenzie, 

Ripley and Spencer 
 
OPPOSED:   Trustee Shipka 
 
The Amendment was CARRIED. 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Ripley: 
 “That Section 6.1.4. – Community Relations Mandate be amended to read as 

follows:  The Board deems it important to listen to the community, and  build 
stronger relations to increase Trustees’ understanding of the community 
perspective and to encourage community involvement and participation in 
public education issues and activities.” 

The Board Chair called the question on the Amendment. 
 
The Amendment was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 



MINUTE BOOK 

5 
September 17, 2013 

 

 
The Board Chair called the question on the Motion as Amended. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
There was a short break at this point. 
 
 5.  Draft Board Policy FA.BP – Infrastructure Planning Principles 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Ripley: 
 “1.  That draft Board Policy FA.BP – Infrastructure Planning Principles be 

considered for the second time.” 
 
MOVED BY Trustee MacKenzie: 

“That the Environmental Stewardship principle be amended to read:  All 
decisions relating to infrastructure management shall demonstrate a 
commitment to environmental stewardship conservation and conform to best 
practices in minimizing environmental impacts.” 

 
The Board Chair called the question on the Amendment. 
 
 
IN FAVOUR:  Trustees Colburn, Hoffman, Janz, Johner, MacKenzie, Ripley, 

Shipka and Spencer 
 
OPPOSED:   Trustees Cleary, Janz and Ripley 
 
The Amendment was CARRIED. 
 
MOVED BY Trustee MacKenzie: 
 “That Board Policy FA.BP – Infrastructure Planning Principles be amended 

by striking the definition of Environment Stewardship.’  
 
The Board Chair called the question on the Amendment. 
 
 
IN FAVOUR:  Trustees Colburn, Hoffman, Janz, Johner, MacKenzie, Ripley, 

Shipka and Spencer 
 
OPPOSED:   Trustees Cleary, Janz and Ripley 
 
The Amendment was CARRIED. 
 



MINUTE BOOK 

6 
September 17, 2013 

 

 
The Board Chair called the question on the Recommendation #1 as Amended. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Ripley: 
 “2.    a)   That draft Board Policy FA.BP – Infrastructure Planning Principles 

be considered for the third time and approved. 
 
   b) That, with new Board Policy FA.BP – Infrastructure Planning 

Principles having been approved, the following policies be 
rescinded: 
• FB.BP – School Re-opening 
• FECA.BP – Identification of a Building as a Historic Resource 
• FED.BP – Capital Projects 
• FEE.BP – Site Acquisition and Disposition 
• FF.BP – Naming of Schools 
• FL.BP – School Closure 
• JG.BP – Community Use of District Buildings 
• JG.BP – Community Use of District Buildings” 

 
The Board Chair called the question. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
 6.  Review of Board Policy IGD.BP – Student Suspension and Expulsion 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Ripley: 
 “1.  That revised Board Policy IGD.BP - Student Suspension and Expulsion 

be considered for the second time.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Ripley: 
 “2.  That revised Board Policy IGD.BP - Student Suspension and 

Expulsion be considered for the third time and approved.”  
(UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 

 



MINUTE BOOK 

7 
September 17, 2013 

 

 
 7.  Draft Board Policies HA.BP – Student Programs of Study and HAA.BP – 

Delivery of Student Programs of Study 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Ripley: 
 “1.  That draft Board Policy HA.BP - Student Programs of Study be 

considered for the second time.”   
 
The Board Chair called the question. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Ripley: 
 “2.    a) That draft Board Policy HA.BP - Student Programs of Study be 

considered for the third time and approved. 
 
   b)  That, with new Board Policy HA.BP – Student Programs of Study 

having been approved, the following policies be rescinded: 
•    HGA.BP – Basic Instructional Program 
•    HGAF.BP – Second Language Education 
•    HGDD.BP – Performance and Exhibit Opportunities in the 

Fine Arts 
•    HGDJ.BP – Participation in Interschool Athletic Activities 
•    HI.BP – Teaching and Learning Resource 
•    HICA.BP – Field Trips 
•    HKB.BP – Homework” 

 
The Board Chair called the question. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Ripley: 
 “3.  That draft Board Policy HAA.BP – Delivery of the Student Programs of 

Study be considered for the second time.”   
 
The Board Chair called the question. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 



MINUTE BOOK 

8 
September 17, 2013 

 

MOVED BY Trustee Ripley: 
 “4.   a)  That draft Board Policy HAA.BP - Delivery of the Student 

Programs of Study be considered for the third time and approved. 
 
   b) That, with new Board Policy HAA.BP – Delivery of the Student 

Programs of Study having been approved, the following policies be 
rescinded: 
•    HA.BP – Student Programs 
•    HGE.BP – Continuing Education” 

 
The Board Chair called the question. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
 8.  Process and Timeline for the Review of the 2012-2013 Results and the Plans 

for 203-2014 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Shipka: 
 “That the process and timeline for review of the 2012-2013 results and the 

2013-2014 plans be approved.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
There was a break at this point in the meeting. 
 
 9.  Funds for 2014-2015 Professional Improvement Program 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Spencer: 
 “That an allocation of $1,000,000 from the 2014-2015 operating budget for 

the purpose of granting professional improvement leaves and/or tuition 
support for the 2014-2015 school year be approved.”  (UNANIMOUSLY 
CARRIED) 

 
 10.  2012-2013 Board Self-Evaluation 
 
Trustee Ripley, Chair Board and Superintendent Evaluation Committee, provided the 
following verbal summary:  On behalf of the Board and Superintendent Evaluations 
Committee, I wish to report that the Board of Trustees has completed its annual self-
evaluation for the 2012-2013 school year. The work of governance is complex and comes 
with both challenges and rewards.  Annually reflecting on the Board’s performance is 
important in the quest to provide strong leadership for the District and ultimately, to 
improve student success. Indeed research shows that when boards engage in ongoing 



MINUTE BOOK 

9 
September 17, 2013 

 

evaluation processes that are both formative and summative in nature, they demonstrate 
commitment to quality, excellence and continuous learning. 
 
So, as part of a quality public institution that is committed to both excellence and 
continuous improvement, the Board asks individual Trustees to evaluate the Board once a 
year, and in June we approved a new ongoing, formative evaluation process to 
complement the annual summative process we are now reporting on.  For the year 2012-
2013, we evaluated ourselves on 112 indicators in 11 key areas (which are detailed in the 
survey attached in Attachment I). The results allow the Board as a whole to determine 
what it is doing well (for example, engaging in democratic process to make sound 
decisions) and what may require additional focus (for example, using data more 
strategically).  The results inform meaningful professional development in the year ahead 
as well as the consideration of potential changes to Board governance systems, practices, 
and protocols.  
 
This is the final year in a three-year term for this Board of Trustees, and we hope that 
this evaluation report will support the transition of a new Board into office after the 
October election.  Going forward, the Board of Trustees believes that key strategies to 
support the achievement of the District Mission, Vision and Priorities should include (1) 
creating strong working relationships between the Board, the Superintendent and 
Administration, (2) developing Metrics tied to District Priorities and policies, and (3) 
engaging stakeholders in a proactive and meaningful way. 
 
In conclusion, the Board has been honored to guide the work of Edmonton Public 
Schools over the past three years.  Attachment II, Term in Review, includes a summary of 
our achievements between 2010 and 2013.  In addition, we feel a great sense of pride in 
our accountability pillar results this year, which are an indicator that our collective 
leadership, supported by the hard work of the Superintendent and all staff, has resulted in 
improved student achievement. In working with the Government of Alberta, our 
Superintendent, staff, students, their families, and our community partners, we have 
demonstrated that all students in our care “will learn to their full potential and develop 
the ability, passion, and imagination to pursue their dreams and contribute to their 
community”. 
 
In the Board Self Evaluation, Trustees were asked “What was the proudest moment for 
the Board this past year?’ The collective answer was simple: hiring our new 
superintendent, Mr. Darrel Robertson!   It was an unexpected and rare opportunity for 
this Board to have had the honour of hiring a new Superintendent, and we are pleased 
that our thorough search process led to our choice of a remarkable leader for the 
District. The Board has full confidence in Mr. Robertson’s leadership, and we wish him 
and the new Board continued success in making Edmonton Public Schools a public 



MINUTE BOOK 

10 
September 17, 2013 

 

education leader in all ways. “Bright futures begin here” and from our perspective, the 
future is very, very, very bright! 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Ripley: 
 “That the report titled ‘2012-2013 Board Self-Evaluation’ and the verbal 

summary be received for information.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
 11.  Persons with Disabilities (Response to Request for Information #268) 
 12.  Implications of Annexation (Response to Request for Information #277) 
 13.  Ideas from May 2013 Community Meeting in Ward H 
  
MOVED BY Trustee Colburn: 
 “That the following reports be received for information: 
 -  Persons with Disabilities (Response to Request for Information #268) 
 -  Implications of Annexation (Response to Request for Information #277) 
 - Ideas from May 2013 Community Meeting in Ward H” 
 
The Board Chair called the question. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
I. Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports 
 
Trustee Cleary reported on the following events she had attended: 

 
• Monday, September 9, 2013 - The Open Source Art Project at Edith Rogers School 

which was a week-long collaborative art mural project sponsored by the Edmonton 
Arts Council and Capital City Cleanup. Lead Artist Will Yee worked with local 
artists, district students, and the community to complete a permanent public art piece 
on the old tennis building on the Edith Rogers School site.  

• Sunday, September 15, 2013 - The Festival of Cultures Celebration hosted by Calvary 
Community Church. She congratulated the organizing committee for the event where 
all elected officials were thanked for their service as well as Principal Al Lowrie of 
Millwoods Christian School. 

 
Trustee Johner, the Board’s representative on ASBA Zone 23, reported that the next ASBA 
Zone 23 general meeting will be held Friday, September 27, 2013 at 9:30 a.m.  All Trustees 
are welcome to attend. 
 
Trustee Colburn spoke about his nine years on the Board.  He found the time to be a 
richly rewarding experience. 



MINUTE BOOK 

11 
September 17, 2013 

 

 
Trustee Cleary, the Board’s representative on the Capital Region Services to Children 
Linkages Committee, reported on the meeting held Thursday, September 12, 2013.  The 
Committee heard a presentation on the Together We Raise Tomorrow Initiative.  An 
update on the Regional Collaborative Service Delivery Model (RCSD) was also provided.  
The next Linkages meeting will be held on November 14, 2013 at the Center for 
Education. 
 
Trustee Hoffman, the Board’s representative on the Alberta School Boards Association 
(ASBA) Board of Directors, provided the following highlights of the meeting held 
September 12, 2013 (she noted Trustee Janz had attended on her behalf the evening of 
September 12th): 
 
• Information was shared regarding the preliminary 2012-2013 Provincial Achievement 

Test and Diploma Exam results.  This information will be released in early October. 
• Professional development was provided regarding cross-ministerial initiatives to 

eliminate child poverty.  
• The ASBA will be submitting a group submission to the Education Act Regulatory 

Review Committee.  A draft of the submission will be considered by the ASBA Board of 
Directors at their October 23, 2013 meeting.  She asked her colleagues to provide her 
with any feedback they wish her to provide at the meeting. 

 
J.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives – 5:00 p.m. 
   – None 
 
K. Trustee and Board Requests for Information – None 
 
L. Notices of Motion – None 
 
The Superintendent thanked Board members on behalf of the District’s staff, students and 
parents for their service to public education. 
 
M. Next Board Meeting Date:   Organizational Board Meeting 
     Tuesday, November 5, 2013 - 2:00 p.m. 
 
The Board Chair expressed appreciation to her colleagues for the opportunity to serve as 
Board Chair.   



MINUTE BOOK 

12 
September 17, 2013 

 

 
N.    Adjournment (3:30 p.m.) 
 
The Board Chair adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Sarah Hoffman, Board Chair  Dr. Sandra Stoddard, Director Governance 
and Strategic Support Services 

       
 



MINUTE BOOK 

1 
November 5, 2013 

 

 
Organizational Board Meeting 

 
Minutes of the Organizational Board Meeting of the Trustees of the Edmonton School 
District No. 7 of the Province of Alberta held in McCauley Chambers in the Centre for 
Education on Tuesday, November 5, 2013 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

 Trustees 
 

 

Sherry Adams 
Orville Chubb 

Michelle Draper 

Ken Gibson 
Sarah Hoffman 

Nathan Ip 

Michael Janz 
Cheryl Johner 

Ray Martin 
  

Officials 
 

 

Diana Bolan 
Jim Davies 

David Fraser 

Mark Liguori 
Ron MacNeil 

Kathy Muhlethaler 

Darrel Robertson 
Sandra Stoddard 

 
 
Board Chair:  Sarah Hoffman (pro tem) Recording Secretary:  Heather Lightfoot 
 
A.    O Canada    
 
Staff Group Representatives 
 
CUPE Local 474 – Felix De Los Santos 
 
B. Roll Call:  (2:00 p.m.) 
 
The Superintendent advised that all Trustees were present. 
 
C. Approval of the Agenda 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Janz: 
 “That the agenda for the November 5, 2013 Organizational Board Meeting 

be approved as printed.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
 



MINUTE BOOK 

2 
November 5, 2013 

 

 
D. Communications from the Board Chair 
 
The Board Chair Pro-Tem advised that, because Remembrance Day will occur before the 
next board meeting on November 26th, Trustees were wearing a poppy.  She also advised 
that there will be no Board Remembrance Day ceremony this year involving Vimy Ridge 
Academy; however, Trustees will be attending Remembrance Day ceremonies at schools 
and in the community the week of November 11th. 
 
E. Communications from the Superintendent of Schools 
 
The Superintendent advised on the following: 
 
• Ms Bernice Schubert, a teacher at Julia Kiniski School, won the National Physical 

Education Teaching Excellence Award from PHE Canada.  Ms Schubert was 
presented with her award at the National Physical Education. Conference in Winnipeg 
at the end of October. 

 
• Ms Kelly Wiltshire, a teacher from Winterburn School, was presented with the 2012-

2013 Junior Achievement Teacher of the Year Award on September 26th.  
 

• Ms Julia Dalman, from Jasper Place School is the recipient of a 2013 TD Michaëlle 
Jean Bursary. Julia is the co-ordinator and innovator of the Global Café program at 
the school.  She was also selected as one of Alberta’s top 30 under 30. She is a 
founding member of ConsentEd, a group dedicated to eliminating sexual violence.  

 
• The Institute for Innovation in Second Language Education of Edmonton Public 

Schools (IISLE), was selected as the 2013 recipient of the Special Award for Friends 
of Canadian Parents for French Alberta and French-Second-Language Programs.   

 
• The Association of Professional Engineers and Geoscientists of Alberta (APEGA) 

recognizes twenty teachers annually from across the province for superior teaching 
skills and ability to inspire learning in math and science.  Ms Catherine Muri, Weinlos 
School, and Ms Shannon Sookochoff, Argyll Centre, are among the 2013 Award 
Recipients. 



MINUTE BOOK 

3 
November 5, 2013 

 

 
F. Reading of the Declaration of Election Results 
 
 1. Declaration of Election Results 
 
The Superintendent reported that the following Trustees had been elected for the ensuing 
four years (2013-2017): 
 
Ward A – Cheryl Johner 
Ward B – Michelle Draper 
Ward C – Orville Chubb 
Ward D – Ray Martin 
Ward E – Ken Gibson 
Ward F – Michael Janz 
Ward G – Sarah Hoffman 
Ward H – Nathan Ip 
Ward I – Sherry Adams 
 
G. Receipt of Oaths of Office 
 
All Oaths of Office were received. 
 
H. Reports 
 
  2. Confirmation of Committees, Board Representation and Regular Meetings 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Johner: 
 

“1. That the following standing committee of the whole be confirmed: 
 

• Caucus Committee 
 
2. That the following standing committees be confirmed: 
  
 a) Advocacy  
 b) Audit 
 b) Board and Superintendent of Schools Evaluations 
 c) Board Community Relations 
 d) District Priorities and Governance 
 e) Policy Review 
 f) Four-Year Budget Planning and Results Review 



MINUTE BOOK 

4 
November 5, 2013 

 

 
 
3. That Board representation on the following District staff negotiating 

committees as required be confirmed: 
 
 Teaching 
 Custodial 
 Maintenance 
 Support 
 
4. That Board membership and representation on the following external 

agency be confirmed: 
 
 Alberta School Boards Association (ASBA) 

• Provincial Executive 
• Provincial Executive - Alternate 
• Zone 23 Executive 
• Zone 23 Executive – Alternate 

 
 
5. That the Board’s ASBA Issues and Resolutions Committee comprised of 

the Board Chair or Board Vice-Chair, the ASBA Provincial Executive 
Board of Directors representative and the Zone 23 representative be 
confirmed. 

 
6. That the Board’s membership and representation on the Capital Region 

Services to Children Linkages Committee be confirmed.   
 

 



MINUTE BOOK 

5 
November 5, 2013 

 

 
7. That Board representation on the Edmonton Public Schools Foundation 

Board of Directors be confirmed.   
 
8. That the following dates and times of regular meetings be confirmed: 
 

a) Board:  The Board will hold its regular meetings at 2:00 p.m. the 
first and third Tuesday of each month when possible, unless 
otherwise directed by special motion or by the Board Chair.  
 

 b) Caucus Committee:  Caucus Committee meetings will be held on an 
as-needed basis at the call of the Caucus Committee Chair in the 
Board Conference Room.  The first Tuesday morning of each month 
will be reserved for such meetings. 

 
9. That the Board reappoint or review the following positions and 

committees: 
  
1. Standing Committees of the Whole 
  
 a) Board Chair 
  
 b) Board Vice-Chair 
  
2. Board Committees: 
  
 a) Advocacy 

 (3 members) 
  
 b) Audit 

 (3 members – 1 of which is the Board Chair) 
  
 c) Board and Superintendent of Schools Evaluations 

 (3 members) 
  
 d) Board Community Relations 

 (3 members) 
  
 e) District Priorities and Governance 

 (3 members) 
  



MINUTE BOOK 

6 
November 5, 2013 

 

 
 

f) Policy Review  
 (3 members) 

  
 g) Budget Planning and Results Review  
  
3. Negotiations: 
  
 a) Custodial Staff 

 (contract expires August 31, 2014)  
 (2 members) 

  
 b) Maintenance Staff 

 (contract expires August 31, 2014)  
 (2 members) 

  
 c) Support Staff 

 (contract expires August 31, 2015) 
  
 d) Teaching Staff 

 (contract expires August 31, 2016) 
  
4. Alberta School Boards Association Positions: 
  
 i) Provincial Executive   
  
 ii) Alternate   
  
 iii) ASBA Zone 23 Executive  
  
 iv) Alternate  
  
5. ASBA Issues and Resolutions Committee 

(1-year term – 3 positions) 
• 1Board Chair or Vice-Chair 
• 2ASBA Zone 23 Executive representative 
• 3ASBA Provincial Executive Board of Directors 

representative  
  

 



MINUTE BOOK 

7 
November 5, 2013 

 

 
6. Capital Region Services to Children 

Linkages Committee 
  
 i) Representative 
  
 ii) Alternate 
  
7. Edmonton Public Schools Foundation Board of Directors” 
  

 
The Board Chair Pro Tem called the question. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 

1.  Standing Committees of the Whole 
 

   a)  Board Chair 
  
The Board Chair Pro Tem called for nominations for the position of Board Chair. 
 
Trustee Johner nominated Trustee Hoffman. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustee Hoffman elected by acclamation as Board Chair for the 
coming year. 
 
   b)  Board Vice-Chair 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for Board Vice-Chair. 
 
Trustee Martin nominated Trustee Janz. 
 
Trustee Adams nominated Trustee Gibson. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
 



MINUTE BOOK 

8 
November 5, 2013 

 

 
MOVED BY: Trustee Chubb 

“That voting for the position of Board Vice-Chair be done by secret ballot.”  
(UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED)   

 
Ballots were distributed by Ms Lightfoot. 
 
The Superintendent of Schools and Dr. Stoddard left the room to count the ballots. 
 
Dr. Stoddard announced that the majority of the Board had re-elected Trustee Janz as Board 
Vice-Chair for the coming year.    
  
MOVED BY Trustee Chubb: 
 “That the ballots be destroyed.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED)   
 
 2.  Board Committees 
 
   a)  Advocacy Committee 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for three Trustee representatives to serve on the 
Advocacy Committee. 
 
Trustee Adams nominated Trustees Chubb, Ip and Martin. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustees Chubb, Ip and Martin as the Board’s representatives on 
the Advocacy Committee for the coming year. 
 
   b)  Audit Committee 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for two Trustee representatives to serve on the 
Audit Committee.  The Board Chair will serve as the third Trustee representative on the 
Audit Committee. 
 
Trustee Johner nominated Trustees Chubb and Gibson. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 



MINUTE BOOK 

9 
November 5, 2013 

 

The Board Chair declared Trustees Chubb and Gibson as Board’s representatives on the 
Audit Committee for the coming year.  The Board Chair will serve as the third Trustee 
representative on the Audit Committee for the coming year. 
 
      b)  Board and Superintendent of Schools Evaluations Committee 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for three Trustee representatives to serve on the 
Board and Superintendent of Schools Evaluations Committee. 
 
Trustee Janz nominated Trustees Chubb, Gibson and Hoffman. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustees Chubb, Gibson and Hoffman as the Board’s 
representatives on the Board and Superintendent of Schools Evaluations Committee for the 
coming year. 
 
      c)  Board Community Relations Committee 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for three Trustee representatives to serve on the 
Board Community Relations Committee. 
 
Trustee Martin nominated Trustees Adams, Ip and Johner, 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustees Adams, Ip and Johner as the Board’s representatives on 
the Board Community Relations Committee for the coming year. 
 



MINUTE BOOK 

10 
November 5, 2013 

 

 
  e)  District Priorities and Governance Committee 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for three Trustee representatives to serve on the 
District Priorities and Governance Committee. 
 
Trustee Ip nominated Trustees Draper, Janz and Martin. 
 
Trustee Adams nominated Trustee Gibson. 
 
Trustee Janz withdrew his nomination. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustees Draper, Gibson and Martin as the Board’s 
representatives on the District Priorities and Governance Committee for the coming year. 
 
   f) Policy Review Committee 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for three Trustee representatives to serve on the 
Policy Review Committee. 
 
Trustee Gibson nominated Trustees Draper, Hoffman and Ip. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustees Draper, Hoffman and Ip as the Board's representatives 
on the Policy Review Committee for the coming year. 
 
   g) Four-Year Budget Planning and Results Review Committees 
 
The Board Chair advised all Trustees participate in the annual budget planning and results 
review of school and central service decision units as determined in the approval of the 
results review process.  
 
 



MINUTE BOOK 

11 
November 5, 2013 

 

 
 3.  Negotiations 
 
   a)   Custodial Staff 
    
The Board Chair called for nominations for two Trustee representatives to serve on the 
negotiations committee with the District’s custodial staff. 
 
Trustee Hoffman nominated Trustees Ip and Martin. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustees Ip and Martin as the two Trustee representatives to serve 
on the negotiations committee with the District’s custodial staff for the coming year. 
    
   b)   Maintenance Staff 

 
The Board Chair called for nominations for two Trustee representatives to serve on the 
negotiations committee with the District’s maintenance staff. 
 
Trustee Ip nominated Trustees Chubb and Janz. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustees Chubb and Janz as the two Trustee representatives to 
serve on the negotiations committee with the District’s maintenance staff for the coming 
year. 
    
   c)   Support Staff 
   d)   Teaching Staff 
 
The Board Chair advised that nominations are not required at this time for negotiating 
committees with the District’s support and teaching staff.   
  



MINUTE BOOK 

12 
November 5, 2013 

 

 
 4.  a)  Alberta School Boards' Association Positions 
      

i) Provincial Executive 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for a Trustee representative to serve on the ASBA 
Provincial Executive. 
 
Trustee Draper nominated Trustee Hoffman. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustee Hoffman as the Board’s representative on the ASBA 
Provincial Executive. 
 
     ii)   ASBA Provincial Executive - Alternate 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for a Trustee to serve as alternate representative to 
serve on the ASBA Provincial Executive. 
 
Trustee Chubb nominated Trustee Janz. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustee Janz as the Board’s alternate representative on the ASBA 
Provincial Executive. 
 
     iii)  Zone 23 Executive 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for a Trustee representative to serve on the ASBA 
Zone 23 executive. 
 
Trustee Janz nominated Trustee Johner. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustee Johner as the Board’s representative on the ASBA Zone 
23 Executive. 



MINUTE BOOK 

13 
November 5, 2013 

 

 
   iv)  Zone 23 Executive - Alternate 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for a Trustee representative to serve as the alternate 
on the ASBA Zone 23 executive. 
  
Trustee Ip nominated Trustee Adams. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustee Adams as the alternate on the ASBA Zone 23 executive. 
 
 5.  ASBA Issues and Resolutions Committee 
 
Trustee Hoffman (as the Board’s representative on the ASBA Provincial Executive), 
Trustee Janz (as Board Vice-Chair) and Trustee Johner (as the Board’s representative on the 
ASBA Zone 23 Executive) will serve as the Board’s representatives on the ASBA Issues 
and Resolutions Committee.   
 
 6.  Capital Region Services to Children Linkages Committee 
 
   a)   Board Representative 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for a Trustee representative to serve as the Board’s 
representative on the Capital Region Services to Children Linkages Committee. 
 
Trustee Gibson nominated Trustee Draper. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustee Draper as the Board’s representative on the Capital 
Region Services to Children Linkages Committee for the coming year. 



MINUTE BOOK 

14 
November 5, 2013 

 

 
   b)   Board Representative - Alternate 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for a Trustee representative to serve as the alternate 
on the Capital Region Services to Children Linkages Committee. 
 
Trustee Gibson nominated Trustee Adams. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustee Adams as the alternate on the Capital Region Services to 
Children Linkages Committee. 
 
  7.  Edmonton Public Schools Foundation Board of Directors 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for a Trustee representative to serve on the 
Edmonton Public Schools Foundation Board of Directors. 
 
Trustee Draper nominated Trustee Adams. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustee Adams as the Board’s representative on the Edmonton 
Public Schools Foundation Board of Directors 
 
  3.  Alberta School Boards Association (ASBA) Second Language Caucus – Call 

for Representation 
 
The Board Chair called for nominations for a Trustee representative to serve on the Alberta 
School Boards Association (ASBA) Second Language Caucus. 
 
Trustee Adams nominated Trustee Johner. 
 
The Board Chair, seeing no further nominations, declared the nominations closed. 
 
The Board Chair declared Trustee Johner as the Board’s representative on the Alberta 
School Boards Association (ASBA) Second Language Caucus. 
 
 
 
 



MINUTE BOOK 

15 
November 5, 2013 

 

  4.  Alberta School Boards Association (ASBA) Task Force on Strengthening the 
Provincial Voice of School Boards – Call for Interest 

 
The Board Chair asked Trustees to indicate whether they wished to have their names 
submitted to the ASBA as the Board’s nominees to serve as on the Task Force on 
Strengthening the Provincial Voice of School Boards. 
 
Trustee Hoffman, nominated Trustees Chubb, Janz and Martin.  
 
The Board Chair advised that Trustees Chubb, Janz and Martin would have their names 
submitted to the ASBA as the Board’s nominees to serve on the Task Force on 
Strengthening the Provincial Voice of School Boards. 
 
H. Trustee and Board Requests for Information 
 
Trustee Ip requested that information be provided outlining the capital planning 
methodology and rationale that was used in identifying and prioritizing the selection of 
Terwillegar Heights and Blackmud Creek as new school sites as well as the processes that 
have been used and/or will be using to engage community perspectives. 
 
I. Notices of Motion – None. 
 
J. Next Board Meeting Date:  Tuesday, November 26, 2013 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
K.    Adjournment (3:00 p.m.) 
 
The Board Chair adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Sarah Hoffman, Board Chair  Dr. Sandra Stoddard, Director Governance 
and Strategic Support Services 

       



 

 
 

DATE: November 26, 2013 
  
TO: Board of Trustees  
  
FROM:  Trustee Michael Janz, Caucus Committee Chair 
  
SUBJECT:  Report #1 of the Caucus Committee (From the Meeting Held  

November 5, 2013) 
  
ORIGINATOR:  Dr. Sandra Stoddard, Director Governance and Strategic Support Services 
  
REFERENCE: Trustees’ Handbook – Caucus Committee Section 5.4 

School Act Section 61 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
1. That Report #1 of the Caucus Committee from the meeting held November 5, 2013 be 

received and considered. 
 
2. That the agreed-to changes for a four-year collective agreement with the Alberta 

Teachers’ Association (Teaching Staff) from September 1, 2012 to August 31, 2016 be 
confirmed. 
 

 
 
:mmf 
 
 

 

http://epsb.ca/policy/trusteeshandbook.pdf
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/574.cfm?page=s03.cfm&leg_type=Acts&isbncln=9780779733941


 

1 

DATE: November 26, 2013 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools  

SUBJECT: Edmonton Public Schools’ Combined Three Year Education Plan and 
Annual Education Results Report 

ORIGINATOR: Mark Liguori, Assistant Superintendent of Schools 
RESOURCE 
STAFF: Janice Aubry, Sandy Forster, Cheryl Hagen, Debbie Jackson, Glenn 

Johnson, Darwin Martin, Eileen Marthiensen, John Nicoll, Lorne Parker, 
Kent Pharis, Natalie Prytuluk, Heather Raymond, Anne Sherwood, Rosalind 
Smith, Carol Symons, Sandra Woitas, Bonnie Zack, Corrie Ziegler 

REFERENCE: Policy and Requirements for School Board Planning and Results Reporting 
 
 
ISSUE 
On a yearly basis, Alberta Education requires school jurisdictions to submit a Three-Year 
Education Plan (3YEP) and an Annual Education Results Report (AERR) to Alberta Education 
by November 30. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED 
This report is brought to the Board of Trustees for the purpose of receiving final input 
and direction prior to presenting a recommendation report at public board on December 
3, 2013, for Trustee approval.   
 
BACKGROUND 
Alberta Education’s Policy and Requirements for School Board Planning and Results 
Reporting states:   
• “Jurisdiction Three-Year Education Plans for 2013/2014 – 2015/2016.  Jurisdiction plans 

must be approved by the board and posted on the jurisdiction website by November 30, 
2013.” 

• “Jurisdiction Annual Education Results Reports on the 2012/2013 school year based on the 
Three-Year Education Plans for 2012/2013 – 2014/2015. Jurisdiction reports are due by 
November 30, 2013.” 

• The District is required to set targets for each year of the plan for measures with an overall 
evaluation of “Issue” or “Concern”.   

• Jurisdictions are required to produce a summary of the AERR that provides parents and 
community members with easy to understand information about the District’s progress.  
The intent of this document is to improve communication, transparency and accountability 
to local stakeholders.  The District’s summary is included in Attachment II.  

 
Alberta Education’s Business Plan 2013-2016 has four goals and expected outcomes for each 
goal.  School authorities must develop their 3YEP to reflect these four goals and related 
outcomes.  Previous 3YEP/AERR reports had three goals and expected outcomes. 
 
Each year the 3YEP/AERR has included a message from the Board Chair. New to this year’s 
3YEP/AERR is a message from the Superintendent of Schools. This addition signifies dual 
responsibility and accountability for district results. 

http://education.alberta.ca/media/6884694/school%20board%20guide-april%202013.pdf


 

2 

Also new this year is a summary of AERR that provides parents and community members with 
easy to understand information about the District’s progress.  The intent of this document is to 
improve communication, transparency and account out of ability to local stakeholders. 
 
RELATED FACTS 
• Due to the election on October 21, 2013, the first opportunity to receive Trustee input is at 

public board on November 26, 2013. 
• It is anticipated the final report will be brought to public board on December 3, 2013, for 

final approval. 
• Approval has been received from Alberta Education for an extension to the November 30 

deadline to December 4, 2013.  Board awareness of this extension is critical to ensuring 
timelines are met. 

 
OPTIONS 
The following options are selected for consideration as they are deemed the most admissible: 
1. Approve the draft 3YEP/AERR document.  A recommendation report will be brought to 

public board on December 3, 2013, for final approval. 
2. Provide input and direction into the draft 3YEP/AERR document.  Changes required will 

be incorporated and a recommendation report will be brought to public board on December 
3, 2013, for final approval. 

 
CONSIDERATIONS & ANALYSIS 
Option 1 and 2 
Approving the draft 3YEP/AERR or incorporating changes on November 27, 2013, allows 
time to present a recommendation report at public board on December 3, 2013, for final 
approval. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
Pending approval of the draft 3YEP/AERR document, a recommendation report will be 
brought to public board on December 3, 2013, for final approval, prior to submitting to Alberta 
Education on December 4, 2013. 
 
ATTACHMENTS & APPENDICES 
ATTACHMENT I Draft Three-Year Education Plan (3YEP) and Annual Education Results 

Report (AERR) 
ATTACHMENT II  Draft Summary of the Annual Education Results Report, 2012-2013. 
 
ML:ja 

  



 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Three-Year Education Plan (3YEP) 
2013-2016 
 
 

Annual Education Results Report 
(AERR) 
2012-2013 
 
 
3020 Edmonton Public School District No. 7  
 
 

 
www.epsb.ca 

Submitted to Alberta Education 
December 4, 2013 

ATTACHMENT I 

http://www.epsb.ca/


Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 2 

Message from the Board Chair 
The Board of Trustees of Edmonton Public Schools is committed to helping students experience success. 
We entrust our staff to provide all learners with the opportunities they need to learn, grow and thrive in 
school and in life. 
 
As a Board, we believe strong policy governance plays a significant role in unlocking our students’ 
potential, meeting their diverse needs and moving our District forward. In support of this focus, we have 
undertaken a multi-year policy review. This comprehensive review is designed to determine which 
policies are still relevant, need revision or should be consolidated or rescinded. The review will enhance 
the District’s ability to ensure policies are in alignment with key priorities as outlined by Alberta Education 
and with the new Education Act. This initiative speaks to the Board’s commitment to ensure all policies 
are current and responsive to our educational, social, economic and political contexts. 
 
The results appearing within this document tell us we’re making a positive difference in many aspects of 
student learning. They reflect the Board’s expectation that every student under our care completes high 
school. We know this work cannot be done in isolation and requires a wide range of partners helping us 
to create welcoming, inclusive environments that will serve our students. We look forward to nurturing our 
common vision of helping each of them, to the greatest extent possible, live up to their promise, develop 
the passion, ability and imagination to pursue their dreams, and contribute to their community. 
 
Sarah Hoffman 
Board Chair 
 
Message from the Superintendent of Schools 
Edmonton Public Schools is a world renowned school district that has a long tradition of striving for 
excellence in education. We believe in creating pathways to success for each and every one of our 
students. With a strong spirit of creativity, innovation and partnership underlying our efforts, we’re 
dedicated to helping students surpass expectations and achieve to the best of their ability.  
 
One important tool that assists us in assessing how effective we are in doing this work is the provincial 
Accountability Pillar. For the 2012-2013 school year, the District made significant improvement in 
achieving the acceptable standard and standard of excellence on diploma exams, receiving an overall 
rating of good and excellent on these measures, respectively. The District also maintained its rating of 
excellence in educational quality, program of studies, citizenship, school improvement and creating safe 
and caring learning environments. We are incredibly proud of these results—achieving an overall rating of 
good on our three year high school completion rate, which continues to rise; and our drop-out rate, which 
is still on the decline. These outcomes point to our success in providing strong support at key transition 
points between grade levels, valuable career coaching and mentoring support in high school, identifying 
at-risk students early and providing a diverse range of strategies and interventions that are helping 
students succeed.  
 
Our Three Year Education Plan for 2013-2016 outlines the initiatives we will implement over the next 
three years to support and enhance the student learning that takes place in our schools and educational 
sites. The document details the specific steps we will take to assist our students in realizing their 
potential.  
 
As a District, we recognize that in order for us to sustain positive results and address areas of challenge, 
we have to reinforce the value of building relationships among students, staff, parents and community. 
Creating networks of support and communities of practice will help strengthen our focus on achieving 
high quality learning environments and ensuring every learner has access to a fantastic teacher. These 
are efforts that are based on shared values and a shared sense of responsibility for student success. By 
working together to support these goals, I’m confident we’ll be able to lift our learners up to new heights—
now, and well into the future. 
 
Darrel Robertson 
Superintendent of Schools 
 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 3 

 
Accountability Statement 
The Annual Education Results Report for the 2012-2013 school year and the Education Plan for the three years 
commencing September 1, 2013, for Edmonton Public Schools was prepared under the direction of the Board 
of Trustees in accordance with its responsibilities under the School Act and the Fiscal Management Act.  This 
document was developed in the context of the provincial government’s business and fiscal plans.  The Board of 
Trustees has used the results reported in the document, to the best of its abilities, to develop the Education Plan 
and is committed to implementing the strategies contained within the Education Plan to improve student 
learning and results. 
 
The Board of Trustees approved this combined Annual Education Results Report for the 2012-2013 school year 
and the Three-Year Education Plan for 2013-2016 on December 3, 2013. 
 
 

Foundation Statements 
 
Our Mission 
We work with families and community partners to provide safe, caring, healthy, diverse, inclusive and 
equitable learning experiences that engage students to achieve their full potential in an increasingly 
interdependent world. 
 
Our Vision 
All students will learn to their full potential and develop the ability, passion and imagination to pursue their 
dreams and contribute to their community. 
 
District Priorities 2011-2014 
1. Provide supports and programs that will enable all students to complete high school.  
2. Deepen students' understanding of equity and empathy as key citizenship traits.  
3. Ensure all students and their families are welcomed, respected, accepted and supported in every 

school.  
4. Promote health and wellness for all students and staff.  
5. Listen to staff, honour their contributions, and support their opportunities for collaboration, growth and 

professional development.  
 

 

A Profile of the School Authority 
Edmonton Public Schools serves approximately 86,554 students and their families representing a rich 
diversity of cultures and backgrounds.  The District operates 202 schools located in a range of socio-
economic neighbourhoods throughout the city. Additionally, it provides educational programming in 
hospitals, correctional institutions, non-profit social service agencies and in storefronts. The District 
provides programming for students beyond K-12 through Early Education and Early Learning 
Programming for students as young as 2½ years and to adults who are provided extension programming 
through Metro Continuing Education.  The District employs over 7,920 staff, including teachers, support 
staff, custodians, maintenance staff and exempt staff. Through site-based decision making, open 
boundaries and programs of choice, the District is responsive to the needs of families in the Edmonton 
community. 
 
 
  



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 4 

Trends and Issues 
• Diversity, equity, and inclusion continue to become central and increasingly important conversations 

and concerns within the day to day operations of schools. Over 30 per cent of students within 
Edmonton Public Schools now self-identify outside of the traditional mainstream in district schools. 
This includes First Nations, Métis or Inuit (FNMI); English Language Learners (ELL); Refugee and 
Newcomers; students in need of specialized supports and services; and sexual and gender 
minorities. The trend towards diversity and inclusion is increasing each year. 

• The number of self-identified First Nations, Métis or Inuit students attending district schools continues 
to grow.  From 2007-2008 to 2012-2013: 
o seven schools have 25 per cent or more students;  
o 55 schools have 15 per cent or more students;  
o 88 schools have 10 per cent or more students;  
o there has been an increase of 1,315 students; 
o the number of students in Grade 12 has increased from 419 to 965; and  
o the number of students in pre-kindergarten has increased from 56 to 125. 

• Enrolment of students identified as English Language Learners (ELL) has increased from 7,698 
students in 2007-2008 to 16,284 students in 2012-2013. 

• Gender identity and gender expression are emerging issues within elementary schools. 
• There is continued concern with budget cuts and the reduction in district level supports available to 

support schools in meeting the school-based needs of increasingly diverse learners with complex 
needs. 

• Limited financial support to organizations which serve immigrant and refugees students and their 
families has resulted in a reduction of services available to vulnerable cultural communities. 

• The need to support ELLs with mental health needs continues to grow. Students’ 
social/emotional/psychological development may be impacted by past life and/or traumatic 
experiences. 

• In 2012, a record number of children (52,398) were born in Alberta, breaking the previous record of 
51,505 set in 2009. For the City of Edmonton, the 2013 municipal census data shows over 46,000 
children of preschool age living in the city. The majority of these children have not yet entered the 
school system.   

• There are approximately 37,000 children affected by poverty in Edmonton, many of whom attend 
District schools, and some who may be at risk of not achieving success in school because they are 
living in socially and economically vulnerable circumstances. 

• Mental health problems often first develop during adolescence or early adulthood, with half of all 
mental disorders beginning by age 14, and 75 per cent beginning by age 24. There is a growing 
recognition within Canada of the critical nature of improving the mental health of young Canadians 
with a particular emphasis on positive mental health. 

• The District continues to serve a growing population of children ages 2½ to 6 years of age identified 
with severe or mild/moderate (M/M) disabilities or delays. In 2013, Edmonton Public Schools served 
1,477 children identified as needing specialized services and supports and eligible for program unit 
funding (PUF). These children were served through 10 Early Education District Centre Special 
Education programs and through Inclusive Learning in 10 Early Learning classes and over 300 
kindergarten classrooms.  

• Over 650 children with MM delays were enrolled in inclusive kindergarten or early learning 
classrooms. The number of children identified as PUF or MM eligible and requiring specialized 
services and supports is expected to increase over the next five years. As of September 30, 2013, 
enrolment in Early Education District Centre Special Education programs has already exceeded 
projected enrolment and additional classes have been added to accommodate this growth. 

• The trends for bullying since 2002 indicate that bullying and victimization are significant problems for 
Canadian children and youth. While the number of children who report bullying others is decreasing, 
the number of children who are victimized remains at about one in four students. Furthermore, 41 per 
cent of students report both bullying others and being victimized.  

• Bullying prevention is a frequent and ongoing conversation both inside and outside of schools. There 
is frequent discussion of the new requirements of the forthcoming Education Act and how schools will 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 5 

be supported to meet the required statutory expectations. 
• The increased use of technology in district schools presents a number of challenges.  Meeting 

SuperNet and Internet bandwidth demands at a district and local school level continues to be an 
issue, as more and more students bring their own devices every day to the classroom.  As a trend, 
the District has been forced to shift from doubling network capacity every two years, to an upgrade 
cycle of every six months. 

• At the leadership level, 57 per cent of principals, and 71 per cent of exempt management employees 
are over the age of 50. This has implications for succession planning for the District. 

• Seventy-one per cent of the administrative assistants in the District are over the age of 50.  It is 
challenging to attract experienced applicants for this complex role in the District.  There is a need to 
access the expertise of recent retirees to assist with filling temporary vacancies and meet the day to 
day need for replacements in district school offices. 

• In response to the District’s inclusive education model and increasing numbers of at risk students and 
students in need of specialized supports and services, there is an increased demand for educational 
assistants with a wide range of expertise, as well as speech and language pathologists, occupational 
therapists, physical therapists, family liaison workers and other wrap-around service professionals. 

• The District attracts the majority of graduates from educational assistant training programs in the 
surrounding post-secondary institutions.  The available supply does not meet the current demand.  
Sixty-three per cent of the District’s current educational assistants are over the age of 45.  This 
demographic combined with the current situation of supply and demand, has serious implications for 
future recruitment and the ability to provide the essential supports for ensuring students’ success. 

• While the recent addition of new schools and modernizations have reduced the District’s average age 
of infrastructure there remains a significant amount of deferred maintenance in schools that are well 
past their design life expectancy. A substantial future deficit is approaching as mechanical and 
building envelope systems reach the end of their expected life cycles.   

• Reductions in annual operating maintenance funding will reduce the District’s ability to proactively 
maintain facilities. 

• There is an expectation that there will be greater community involvement in the use of schools before, 
during and after school hours. 

• Heightened expectation for engagement: The District recognizes the landscape has shifted with 
respect to the expectations parents/guardians have in ensuring their voice is heard on decisions that 
impact their children’s education. This expectation is also extended to community members as it 
relates to infrastructure and school space issues. On these topics, both parents/guardians and 
community members are showing a growing desire to have input on how the District navigates 
complex issues. District schools are increasingly viewed not just as places of learning, but also as 
community assets; stakeholders therefore desire and expect to have the opportunity to participate in 
decisions that will impact these community assets.  

• Work is underway to develop the Edmonton Regional Collaboration Service Delivery (RCSD) 
partnership between Edmonton school authorities, Alberta Health Services (AHS), Child and Family 
Services Authorities (CFSA) and other community stakeholders. This work is requiring extensive 
engagement among the partners to ensure the development of the service delivery model will 
seamlessly meet the identified needs of all children and youth in Edmonton.  

• Edmonton Public Schools, as the banker board and coordinator of service delivery for Edmonton 
Regional Educational Consulting Services (ERECS), has staff employed to serve 32 school 
authorities in Northern Alberta. The impending redistribution of resources from ERECS to RCSD will 
place the District in a position of fiscal liability with the downsizing of staff to match resources 
received. 

• The 2013-2016 Government of Alberta Strategic Plan lists themes that will have an impact on future 
direction of the District: 
o Early childhood development - transformational change that promotes efforts for children to have 

a healthy start and to realize their full potential when they enter school. 
o Balanced fiscal framework - to improve the government’s ability to smooth out the impacts of 

economic cycles on provincial programs and to ensure financial sustainability.  
 
  



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 6 

Summary of Accomplishments  
During the 2012-2013 school year, the Board of Trustees made significant contributions to the District in a 
number of areas. The following is a summary of some key outcomes: 
• Continued to focus on ensuring students receive the support they need to successfully complete high 

school. From 2007-2008 to 2011-2012, the District saw a 2.8 per cent increase in the five-year high 
school completion rate, rising from 73.7 per cent to 76.5 per cent.  

• Launched the Move to Action: Bully Prevention Toolkit in the fall of 2012 and developed a district 
definition of bullying as part of the administrative regulation on Safe, Caring and Respectful Learning 
Environments (IF.AR). 

• Advocated for a more comprehensive approach to developing financial literacy among students as 
part of the K-12 curriculum. 

• Renewed commitment to supporting the Edmonton Public Schools Foundation until 2015. Since its 
2010 launch, the Foundation has raised funds to help support full-day Kindergarten programs in high 
social vulnerability areas. 

• Ensured effective management of district resources through the approval of a balanced budget. 
• Focused on minimizing the impact on schools in the face of a significant provincial budget cut in 2013. 

Schools saw an overall reduction of 1.89 per cent. 
• Reached collective agreements with staff groups (Custodial 2011-2014, Maintenance 2011-2014, 

Support 2011-2015). 
• Opened three new schools in fall 2012: Bessie Nichols (K-9), Michael Strembitsky (K-9) and Major 

General Griesbach (replacement K-9). 
• Approved the implementation of a multi-year board policy review. The comprehensive review is 

designed to determine which policies may be redundant, may need revision or should be consolidated 
or rescinded. The review will enhance the District’s ability to ensure policies are in alignment with key 
priorities as outlined by Alberta Education and with the new Education Act. The review speaks to the 
Board of Trustees’ commitment to ensure all policies are current and responsive to the District’s 
educational, social, economic and political contexts. 

• Developed a set of Planning Principles based on stakeholder input, the Elevate Report, Education Act 
and Joint Use Agreement to help the District navigate significant challenges related to a growing 
infrastructure deficit, ongoing space issues and the changing demographics of our city. The Planning 
Principles will help to create a stakeholder engagement process (which will devise a new framework 
through which parents/guardians and community members can share their perspectives on 
infrastructure issues) and will also ultimately inform the District’s Infrastructure Strategy.  

• Partnered with the Edmonton Catholic School Board to carry out a feasibility study on joint 
transportation plans to improve efficiency, reduce ride times and reduce costs for both districts. 

• Engaged in joint advocacy with Edmonton Catholic, Calgary Public and Calgary Catholic Schools in 
the areas of Aboriginal education, English Language Learners and Early Education. 

• Advocated for sustainable, predictable and adequate funding. 
 
The work of the Three-Year Education Plan is guided by the District Priorities: 
• Provide supports and programs that will enable all students to complete high school. 
• Deepen students’ understanding of equity and empathy as key citizenship traits. 
• Ensure all students and their families are welcomed, respected, accepted, and supported in every 

school. 
• Promote health and wellness for all students and staff. 
• Listen to staff, honour their contributions, and support their opportunities for collaboration, growth and 

professional development.  
 
The new Board of Trustees will develop the District Priorities during the 2013-2014 year. 
 
The District Priorities were supported by six goals for 2012-2013 as outlined in the District Plan: 
• Implement the K-12 Literacy plan for 21st century learners. 
• Develop and implement strategies that promote student citizenship, health and creativity. 
• Develop and implement interventions for diverse learners. 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 7 

• Develop and implement a school leadership framework. 
• Enable inclusive learning environments in all schools. 
• Deliver core and discretionary services to schools. 
 
The new District Support Team (formerly the Executive Team) will review and revise the District Plan 
during the 2013-2014 year. 

 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 8 

Combined 2013 Accountability Pillar Overall Summary (Required for Public/Separate/Francophone/Charter School Authorities and Level 2 Private Schools) 
Measure Category Measure Category 

Evaluation Measure Edmonton School District 
No. 7 Alberta Measure Evaluation 

   Current 
Result 

Prev 
Year 

Result 
Prev 3 
Year 

Average 
Current 
Result 

Prev 
Year 

Result 
Prev 3 
Year 

Average 
Achievement Improvement Overall 

Safe and Caring Schools Excellent Safe and Caring 89.3 88.5 87.9 89.0 88.6 88.1 Very High Improved 
Significantly Excellent 

Student Learning 
Opportunities Excellent 

Program of Studies 83.1 81.9 82.0 81.5 80.7 80.7 Very High Improved 
Significantly Excellent 

Education Quality 91.2 90.6 90.4 89.8 89.4 89.3 Very High Improved 
Significantly Excellent 

Drop Out Rate 3.6 4.3 4.9 3.5 3.2 3.9 High Improved 
Significantly Good 

High School Completion Rate 
(3 yr) 69.8 68.0 67.5 74.8 74.1 72.7 Intermediate Improved 

Significantly Good 
Student Learning 
Achievement (Grades K-9) n/a PAT: Acceptable n/a 80.5 80.4 n/a 79.1 79.2 n/a n/a n/a 

PAT: Excellence n/a 23.6 23.1 n/a 20.9 19.9 n/a n/a n/a 

Student Learning 
Achievement (Grades 10-12) 

Acceptable 
Diploma Exam Participation 
Rate (4+ Exams) 61.4 58.8 58.3 56.6 56.2 54.9 High Improved 

Significantly Good 
Rutherford Scholarship 
Eligibility Rate (Revised) 60.7 62.1 59.6 61.3 61.5 59.4 High Improved Good 

n/a Diploma: Acceptable n/a 81.2 80.9 n/a 83.5 83.2 n/a n/a n/a 
Diploma: Excellence n/a 19.1 19.6 n/a 18.6 18.8 n/a n/a n/a 

Preparation for Lifelong 
Learning, World of Work, 
Citizenship 

Good 
Transition Rate (6 yr) 61.5 58.9 60.0 59.5 58.4 59.2 High Improved Good 
Work Preparation 82.1 80.6 80.7 80.3 79.7 79.9 High Improved 

Significantly Good 
Citizenship 84.4 83.2 82.6 83.4 82.5 82.0 Very High Improved 

Significantly Excellent 
Parental Involvement Good Parental Involvement 78.7 77.8 78.4 80.3 79.7 79.8 High Maintained Good 
Continuous Improvement Excellent School Improvement 80.8 79.7 79.5 80.6 80.0 80.0 Very High Improved 

Significantly Excellent 
 
Notes: 
1. PAT results are a weighted average of the percent meeting standards (Acceptable, Excellence) on Provincial Achievement Tests. The weights are the number of students enrolled in each course. Courses 

included: English Language Arts (Grades 3, 6, 9), Science (Grades 6, 9), French Language Arts (Grades 6, 9), Français (Grades 6, 9). 
2. Diploma results are a weighted average of percent meeting standards (Acceptable, Excellence) on Diploma Examinations. The weights are the number of students writing the Diploma Examination for each 

course. Courses included: English Language Arts 30-1, English Language Arts 30-2, French Language Arts 30-1, Français 30-1, Pure Mathematics 30, Applied Mathematics 30, Biology 30, Science 30. 
3. Overall evaluations can only be calculated if both improvement and achievement evaluations are available. 
4. The subsequent pages include evaluations for each performance measure.  If jurisdictions desire not to present this information for each performance measure in the subsequent pages, please include a 

reference to this overall summary page for each performance measure. 
5. Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 9 

Combined 2013 Accountability Pillar FNMI Summary (Required for Public/Separate/Francophone School Authorities) 
Measure Category Measure Category 

Evaluation Measure Edmonton School District 
No. 7 Alberta Measure Evaluation 

   Current 
Result 

Prev 
Year 

Result 
Prev 3 
Year 

Average 
Current 
Result 

Prev 
Year 

Result 
Prev 3 
Year 

Average 
Achievement Improvement Overall 

Student Learning 
Opportunities n/a 

Drop Out Rate 9.4 10.7 11.8 8.5 9.0 10.2 Very Low Improved 
Significantly Acceptable 

High School Completion Rate 
(3 yr) 30.3 30.3 26.2 43.9 40.2 37.5 Very Low Improved Issue 

Student Learning 
Achievement (Grades K-9) n/a PAT: Acceptable n/a 56.4 57.1 n/a 58.3 58.5 n/a n/a n/a 

PAT: Excellence n/a 6.2 6.5 n/a 6.6 6.3 n/a n/a n/a 

Student Learning 
Achievement (Grades 10-12) 

Issue 
Diploma Exam Participation 
Rate (4+ Exams) 19.9 14.3 14.8 21.2 19.6 18.5 Very Low Improved 

Significantly Acceptable 
Rutherford Scholarship 
Eligibility Rate (Revised) 32.6 35.4 31.5 35.1 34.4 31.4 Very Low Maintained Concern 

n/a Diploma: Acceptable n/a 77.1 76.2 n/a 77.6 77.2 n/a n/a n/a 
Diploma: Excellence n/a 8.0 8.7 n/a 8.8 8.3 n/a n/a n/a 

Preparation for Lifelong 
Learning, World of Work, 
Citizenship 

n/a Transition Rate (6 yr) 23.7 25.9 24.5 32.2 30.2 31.8 Very Low Maintained Concern 
 
Notes: 
1. PAT results are a weighted average of the percent meeting standards (Acceptable, Excellence) on Provincial Achievement Tests. The weights are the number of students enrolled in each course. Courses 

included: English Language Arts (Grades 3, 6, 9), Science (Grades 6, 9), French Language Arts (Grades 6, 9), Français (Grades 6, 9). 
2. Diploma results are a weighted average of percent meeting standards (Acceptable, Excellence) on Diploma Examinations. The weights are the number of students writing the Diploma Examination for each 

course. Courses included: English Language Arts 30-1, English Language Arts 30-2, French Language Arts 30-1, Français 30-1, Pure Mathematics 30, Applied Mathematics 30, Biology 30, Science 30. 
3. Overall evaluations can only be calculated if both improvement and achievement evaluations are available. 
4. Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 
 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 10 

Measure Evaluation Reference (Optional) 
 
Achievement Evaluation 
Achievement evaluation is based upon a comparison of Current Year data to a set of standards which remain consistent over time. The 
Standards are calculated by taking the 3 year average of baseline data for each measure across all school jurisdictions and calculating the 
5th, 25th, 75th and 95th percentiles. Once calculated, these standards remain in place from year to year to allow for consistent planning and 
evaluation.  
 
The table below shows the range of values defining the 5 achievement evaluation levels for each measure. 
Measure Very Low Low Intermediate High Very High 
Safe and Caring 0.00 - 77.62 77.62 - 81.05 81.05 - 84.50 84.50 - 88.03 88.03 - 100.00 
Program of Studies 0.00 - 66.31 66.31 - 72.65 72.65 - 78.43 78.43 - 81.59 81.59 - 100.00 
Education Quality 0.00 - 80.94 80.94 - 84.23 84.23 - 87.23 87.23 - 89.60 89.60 - 100.00 
Drop Out Rate 100.00 - 9.40 9.40 - 6.90 6.90 - 4.27 4.27 - 2.79 2.79 - 0.00 
High School Completion Rate (3 yr) 0.00 - 57.03 57.03 - 62.36 62.36 - 73.88 73.88 - 81.79 81.79 - 100.00 
PAT: Acceptable 0.00 - 65.53 65.53 - 78.44 78.44 - 85.13 85.13 - 89.49 89.49 - 100.00 
PAT: Excellence 0.00 - 9.19 9.19 - 11.96 11.96 - 17.99 17.99 - 22.45 22.45 - 100.00 
Diploma: Acceptable 0.00 - 74.42 74.42 - 83.58 83.58 - 88.03 88.03 - 92.35 92.35 - 100.00 
Diploma: Excellence 0.00 - 10.31 10.31 - 15.67 15.67 - 20.27 20.27 - 23.77 23.77 - 100.00 
Diploma Exam Participation Rate (4+ Exams) 0.00 - 31.10 31.10 - 44.11 44.11 - 55.78 55.78 - 65.99 65.99 - 100.00 
Rutherford Scholarship Eligibility Rate (Revised) 0.00 - 43.18 43.18 - 49.83 49.83 - 59.41 59.41 - 70.55 70.55 - 100.00 
Transition Rate (6 yr) 0.00 - 39.80 39.80 - 46.94 46.94 - 56.15 56.15 - 68.34 68.34 - 100.00 
Work Preparation 0.00 - 66.92 66.92 - 72.78 72.78 - 77.78 77.78 - 86.13 86.13 - 100.00 
Citizenship 0.00 - 66.30 66.30 - 71.63 71.63 - 77.50 77.50 - 81.08 81.08 - 100.00 
Parental Involvement 0.00 - 70.76 70.76 - 74.58 74.58 - 78.50 78.50 - 82.30 82.30 - 100.00 
School Improvement 0.00 - 65.25 65.25 - 70.85 70.85 - 76.28 76.28 - 80.41 80.41 - 100.00 
 
Notes: 
1) For all measures except Drop Out Rate: The range of values at each evaluation level is interpreted as greater than or equal to the lower 

value, and less than the higher value. For the Very High evaluation level, values range from greater than or equal to the lower value to 
100%. 

2) Drop Out Rate measure: As "Drop Out Rate" is inverse to most measures (i.e. lower values are "better"), the range of values at each 
evaluation level is interpreted as greater than the lower value and less than or equal to the higher value. For the Very High evaluation 
level, values range from 0% to less than or equal to the higher value. 

 
Improvement Table 
For each jurisdiction, improvement evaluation consists of comparing the Current Year result for each measure with the previous three-year 
average. A chi-square statistical test is used to determine the significance of the improvement. This test takes into account the size of the 
jurisdiction in the calculation to make improvement evaluation fair across jurisdictions of different sizes. 
 
The table below shows the definition of the 5 improvement evaluation levels based upon the chi-square result. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Overall Evaluation Table 
The overall evaluation combines the Achievement Evaluation and the Improvement Evaluation. The table below illustrates how the 
Achievement and Improvement evaluations are combined to get the overall evaluation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Category Evaluation 
The category evaluation is an average of the Overall Evaluation of the measures that make up the category. For the purpose of the 
calculation, consider an Overall Evaluation of Excellent to be 2, Good to be 1, Acceptable to be 0, Issue to be -1, and Concern to be -2. The 
simple average (mean) of these values rounded to the nearest integer produces the Category Evaluation value. This is converted back to a 
colour using the same scale above (e.g. 2=Excellent, 1=Good, 0=Intermediate, -1=Issue, -2=Concern) 

Evaluation Category Chi-Square Range 
Declined Significantly 3.84 +  (current < previous 3-year average) 
Declined 1.00 - 3.83 (current < previous 3-year average) 
Maintained less than 1.00 
Improved 1.00 - 3.83 (current > previous 3-year average) 
Improved Significantly 3.84 + (current > previous 3-year average) 
 

 Achievement 
Improvement Very High High Intermediate Low Very Low 
Improved Significantly Excellent Good Good Good Acceptable 
Improved Excellent Good Good Acceptable Issue 
Maintained Excellent Good Acceptable Issue Concern 
Declined Good Acceptable Issue Issue Concern 
Declined Significantly Acceptable Issue Issue Concern Concern 
 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 11 

Goal One:  An excellent start to learning 
Outcome: Children are reaching emotional, social, intellectual and physical development 

milestones and are ready for school. 
 
Data from the Early Development Instrument (EDI) indicates that 31.5 per cent of 
Edmonton children are experiencing difficulty in one or more areas of development in 
vulnerable communities. 
 

Comment on Results  
To support healthy development of children living in vulnerable communities, Edmonton Public Schools 
offers early learning classes and full-day kindergarten programs in schools located within many of these 
communities. 
 
Strategies 
The following strategies supported this goal and will continue for 2013-2014: 
• Provide supports and services for children eligible for Mild/Moderate (MM) or Program Unit Funding 

(PUF) through Early Years (Early Education, Early Learning and Kindergarten) programming options. 
• Support teachers and children in kindergarten by using data from the Early Years Evaluation Teacher 

Assessment (EYE-TA). 
• Support Edmonton Public Schools’ commitment to developing a clear and consistent understanding 

of appropriate, inquiry play-based practices that allow children to realize potential by using the 
District’s Early Years Guiding Document. 

• Implement the EYE-TA in kindergarten classes to provide a picture of children's development as they 
enter kindergarten and as a tool for identification of and programming for children in need of 
specialized supports and services.   

• Assist teachers and multidisciplinary teams to plan instruction for the entire class, for small groups, 
and for individual children to address areas of need using individual EYE-TA results and classroom 
profiles. 

• Support and increase the number of high needs schools that offer full-day kindergarten, through the 
District Foundation.  

• Provide parent/guardian orientations and bridging between schools and home in order to support 
immigrant and refugee students and families in entering the school system for the first time.  

 
The following strategies are new for 2013-2014 and will complement and strengthen the ongoing 
strategies: 
• Provide targeted professional learning for early years teachers with a focus on best practices in 

developing a play-based learning environment and understanding the implication of current research 
on brain development.  

• Provide guidance for teachers to program effectively using English as a Second Language (ESL) 
Benchmarks in conjunction with the EYE-TA for children who are ELL.  Teachers will use this data to 
inform parents/guardians regarding their child’s language development.  

• Share digital student records with Alberta Health Services staff using an online tool to improve 
communication, access to information and timeliness of service. 

• Develop an Early Years pilot project to provide direction for the District to address the challenges and 
needs of a growing preschool population. 

 
 
 
  



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 12 

Goal Two:  Success for every student 
Outcome: Students achieve student learning outcomes.  
 

Performance Measure Results (in percentages)  Target Evaluation Targets 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2013 Achievement Improvement Overall 2014 2015 2016 

Overall percentage of students 
who achieved the acceptable 
standard on diploma 
examinations (overall results). 

82.8 80.9 80.3 81.3 82.5 82.2 Intermediate Improved 
Significantly Good    

Overall percentage of students 
who achieved the standard of 
excellence on diploma 
examinations (overall results). 

20.7 20.7 21.5 21.6 24.8 19.5 Very High Improved 
Significantly Excellent    

 

Performance Measure Results (in percentages)  Target Evaluation Targets 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Achievement Improvement Overall 2014 2015 2016 

High School Completion Rate - 
Percentage of students who 
completed high school within three 
years of entering Grade 10. 

65.7 67.1 67.3 68.0 69.8  Intermediate Improved 
Significantly Good    

Drop Out Rate - annual dropout 
rate of students aged 14 to 18 5.7 5.6 4.9 4.3 3.6  High Improved 

Significantly Good    

High school to post-secondary 
transition rate of students within 
six years of entering Grade 10. 

59.6 61.1 59.9 58.9 61.5  High Improved Good    

Percentage of Grade 12 students 
eligible for a Rutherford 
Scholarship. 

56.2 57.1 59.7 62.1 60.7  High Improved Good    

Percentage of students writing 
four or more diploma exams within 
three years of entering Grade 10. 

54.9 57.6 58.4 58.8 61.4  High Improved 
Significantly Good    

 
Comment on Results 
In the area of diploma results, the District “improved significantly” in the overall percentage of students who 
achieved at both the acceptable and excellence level.  The District “maintained” improvement at the acceptable 
level in English 30-1, English 30-2, and French Language Arts 30-1. Acceptable results “improved” for Social 
Studies 30-1.  The results for Biology 30, Chemistry 30, Physics 30 and Science 30 at the acceptable level all 
“improved significantly.”  Acceptable level results for Social Studies 30-2 “declined significantly”, as they did for 
the province. 
 
With regards to the excellence level, the District “maintained” improvement at the excellence level in English 
30-2, and Social Studies 30-1.  The results for Biology 30, Chemistry 30, Physics 30 and Science 30 at the 
excellence level all “improved significantly.”  The results for English 30-1 at the excellence level “improved.”  
Excellence level results “declined” for Social Studies 30-2 and French Language Arts 30-1, as they did for the 
province. 
 
High School Completion/Drop Out  Rate 
The District results for the measures of High School Completion (three year) and Drop Out Rate “improved 
significantly”.   
 
Post-secondary Transition 
The District has a rating of “high” for this measure, and has “improved significantly.” 
 
Rutherford Scholarship Eligibility 
In 2012, 5,393 Grade 12 students were eligible for Rutherford Scholarships. 
 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 13 

Strategies 
The following strategies will be enhanced and continue for 2013-2014: 
• Support school staff through multidisciplinary teams, with an additional focus on using the Pyramid of 

Intervention as a means to support all students.  
• Provide a wrap-around model of support for students by partnering with:  Wellness, Resiliency and 

Partnership (WRAP) Project; Tri-School Project; Vision Resource Centre - North, A Capacity Building 
Project for Students who are Deaf/Hard of Hearing; Partners for Kids (PFK); the Way in Project; and 
the STAR Project. 

• Support schools in developing strategies to create one inclusive learning environment for all students 
by releasing an additional Everyone’s In video. 

• Review the District’s Highest Level of Achievement Test (HLAT) in light of the changing context of 
21st century literacy. 

• Support new immigrant and refugee families and their children through four English Language 
Reception Centres. 

• Implement the updated Board Policy HK.BP - Student Assessment, Achievement and Growth.  
• Support approximately 400 international students, from a variety of countries, with academic and 

English language programming, through the International Student Program unit. 
• Implement a new library system in all schools, which supports the beliefs and understandings of a 

library learning commons approach. This district-wide, web-based, resource provides anytime, 
anywhere simultaneous access to a centralized catalogue of both print and digital resources to 
support student learning. 

• Provide a range of locally developed courses that augment the provincial curricula and enhance 
programming for district students. 

 
The following strategies are new for 2013-2014 and will complement and strengthen the ongoing 
strategies: 
• Establish a community of practice to support teachers to meet the learning needs of students who 

present with behavioural support needs.  
• Develop and implement a communication plan to support school and central staff to implement Board 

Policy IA.BP - Inclusive Education and Administrative Regulation IA.AR - Students in Need of 
Specialized Supports and Services to create one inclusive learning environment for all students. 

• Establish a community of practice to support teachers to provide meaningful and engaged learning for 
all students through the use of Universal Design for Learning strategies.  

• Revise Administrative Regulation HK.AR - Communicating Student Achievement and Growth to 
support enhancement and accuracy of information about student assessment and student 
achievement.  

• Prepare and submit four proposals for Curriculum Development Prototyping; should one or more 
proposals be awarded to the District, proposal plans will be implemented. 

• Work with key staff to address declines in Social Studies 30-2 (acceptable standard and standard of 
excellence) and French Language Arts 30-1 (standard of excellence). 

• Facilitate teacher professional collaboration groups through catchment areas, to analyze data, 
address shortfalls and enhance results. 

Notes: 
1. Aggregated Diploma results are a weighted average of percent meeting standards (Acceptable, Excellence) on Diploma Examinations. The weights 

are the number of students writing the Diploma Examination for each course. Courses included: English Language Arts 30-1, English Language Arts 
30-2, French Language Arts 30-1, Français 30-1, Pure Mathematics 30, Applied Mathematics 30, Biology 30, Science 30. The percentages 
achieving the acceptable standard include the percentages achieving the standard of excellence. 

2. Diploma Examination Participation, High School Completion and High school to Post-secondary Transition rates are based upon a cohort of grade 
10 students who are tracked over time.   

3. Please note that the rules for Rutherford Scholarships changed in 2008, which increased the number of students eligible for Rutherford 
Scholarships. The history for the measure has been re-computed to allow for trends to be identified.  

4. Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

  



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 14 

Outcome: Students demonstrate proficiency in literacy and numeracy. 
 

Performance Measure Results (in percentages)  Target Evaluation Targets 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2013 Achievement Improvement Overall 2014 2015 2016 

Overall percentage of students in 
Grades 3, 6 and 9 who achieved the 
acceptable standard on Provincial 
Achievement Tests (overall cohort 
results). 

78.7 79.7 81.0 80.5 81.0  Intermediate Improved Good    

Overall percentage of students in 
Grades 3, 6 and 9 who achieved the 
standard of excellence on Provincial 
Achievement Tests (overall cohort 
results). 

21.0 22.4 23.1 23.5 22.8  High Maintained Good    

 
Comment on Results  
In the area of acceptable standard, the District demonstrated a 0.5 per cent increase compared to 2012.  In the 
area of standard of excellence, the District demonstrated a 0.7 per cent decline, but maintained a rating of “high” 
for this measure. 
 
With regards to the acceptable standard, the District has “maintained”, “improved” or “improved significantly” in 
all but two of the subject areas for which data is available.  Results have “declined” at the acceptable level for 
French Language Arts 3, and results have “declined significantly” for Social Studies 9. 
 
With regards to the standard of excellence, the District has “maintained”, “improved” or “improved significantly” 
in all subjects except French Language Arts 3, where results have “declined.” 
Strategies 
The following strategies will be enhanced and continue for 2013-2014: 
• Implement literacy modules to support literacy learning from Kindergarten to Grade 12, including: 

o Literacy Foundations for English language arts and content area teachers; 
o Literacy Foundations for French Immersion and bilingual program teachers; and 
o other literacy modules, based on need and interest. 

• Provide research support for ELL, literacy and high school literacy interventions through the 
Research, Data and Knowledge unit. 

• Support for literacy interventions: Reading Recovery, Leveled Literacy Intervention, Middle Years 
Literacy and High School Literacy Intervention. 

• Support bilingual, immersion and language, and culture programs at all levels in the District. 
• Develop and introduce the Quality Literacy Programming: A Reflective Tool to support district 

leadership staff and teachers to improve literacy programming practices in district schools. 
• Provide teachers with high school student exemplars of work standards in mathematics. 
• Support the use of Google Apps in SchoolZone, available on any device, at school or home, to 

improve student writing through the use of online collaborative tools that promote peer review and 
feedback. 

 

The following strategies are new for 2013-2014 and will complement and strengthen the ongoing 
strategies: 
• Investigate appropriate assessment practices and related tools to accurately support and enhance 

assessment of student literacy. 
• Pilot the Whole School High School Literacy Professional Learning module, focusing on delivering 

literacy foundations for all high school teachers in the same school. 
• Work with key staff to address declines in French Language Arts 3 (acceptable standard and 

standard of excellence) and Social Studies 9 (acceptable standard). 
• Facilitate teacher professional collaboration groups through catchment areas, to analyze data, 

address shortfalls and enhance results. 
Notes: 
1. Aggregated PAT results are based upon a weighted average of percent meeting standards (Acceptable, Excellence). The weights are the number of 

students enrolled in each course. Courses included: English Language Arts (Grades 3, 6, 9), Science (Grades 6, 9), French Language Arts (Grades 
6, 9), Français (Grades 6, 9). The percentages achieving the acceptable standard include the percentages achieving the standard of excellence.  

2. Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 
 

  



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 15 

Outcome: Students demonstrate citizenship and entrepreneurship. 
Performance Measure Results (in percentages) Target Evaluation Targets 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2013 Achievement Improvement Overall 2014 2015 2016 
Percentage of teachers, parents 
and students who are satisfied 
that students model the 
characteristics of active 
citizenship. 

81.5 82.2 82.4 83.2 84.4  Very High Improved 
Significantly Excellent    

Percentage of teachers and 
parents who agree that students 
are taught attitudes and 
behaviours that will make them 
successful at work when they 
finish school. 

80.9 80.6 81.0 80.6 82.1  High Improved 
Significantly Good    

 

Comment on Results 
Percentages of teachers, parents and students who are satisfied that students model the 
characteristics of active citizenship. 
This measure is made up of the aggregated responses to five statements related to citizenship: 
• Students at school follow the rules. 
• Students help each other at school when they can. 
• Students respect each other at school. 
• Students are encouraged to be involved in activities to help the community. 
• Students are encouraged to do his/her best. 
 
In the area of satisfaction that students model the characteristics of active citizenship, the District has an 
achievement rating of “very high” with the improvement for 2012-2013 rated as “improved significantly”.  All 
three respondent groups, parents, teachers and students in Grades 4, 7 and 10, reported the highest level of 
satisfaction with students “being encouraged to do his/ her best at school”. 
 
As with the Province, students report the highest level of satisfaction, followed by teachers.   
 
Percentages of teachers and parents who agree that students are taught attitudes and behaviours that 
will make them successful at work when they finish school. 
This measure is made up of the aggregated responses to one question.  The District has “improved 
significantly” to achieve a rating of “high” for 2012-2013. 
 
Strategies 
The following strategies will be enhanced and continue for 2013-2014: 
• Implement Administrative Regulation IFA.AR - Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity.  
• Provide Safe Contact training and support - 200 staff currently trained. 
• Support and expand the number of schools that have established Gay Straight Alliances - 19 schools 

identified Gay-Straight Alliances in 2012-2013. 
• Develop online professional learning modules for teachers to support the development of intercultural 

skills and competencies in bilingual program students, as part of an international project with the 
European Centre for Modern Languages. 

• Complete and implement the Handbook for International Interactions in Second Language Programs: 
A Teacher Resource.  

• Provide professional learning support to teachers for the Global Citizenship components of the 
second languages curricula. 

• Revise Administrative Regulation HGD.AR - Knowledge and Employability Courses to support a 
consistent approach to programming that reflects an inclusive perspective. 

• Link staff with agencies and community partners that provide evidence-based resources such as 
Fourth R and Olweus, as well as opportunities such as We Day Alberta that promote the development 
of citizenship skills. 

• Implement Administrative Regulation IF.AR – Safe, Caring and Respectful Learning Environments 
through the provision of resources such as the Move to Action: Bullying Prevention Toolkit and 
information sessions for staff. 
 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 16 

• Provide the Board of Trustees with direct input from high school students through the Student 
Advisory Council, formed as a result of a Board of Trustees motion.  The Student Advisory Council 
will share successes and challenges related to academic achievement, citizenship and preparation for 
work. 

• Engage and empower youth as agents of change through the Centre for Global Education at Queen 
Elizabeth School.  The Centre facilitates global dialogues and learning opportunities with over 30,000 
young people as they take their learning beyond the classroom and into 32 different countries 
throughout the world. 

• Engage junior and senior high school students and their parents/guardians in career planning to 
assist them in developing the competencies they need to make successful transitions into further 
learning, adult roles and economic independence.  

• Support and expand school and student involvement in Junior Achievement by creating awareness of 
the program’s goals of developing successful financial management habits, exploring the potential of 
entrepreneurship, and developing skills to succeed in a global economy. 

 
The following strategies are new for 2013-2014 and will complement and strengthen the ongoing 
strategies: 
• Provide information sessions to district staff regarding the Government of Alberta Department of 

Education Ministerial Order (#001/2013) on Student Learning with a focus on all students becoming 
Engaged Thinkers and Ethical Citizens with an Entrepreneurial Spirit. 

• Transfer coordination and programming of Edmonton Public Schools high school athletics to Metro 
Edmonton High School Athletic Association (Metro).  

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*).  



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 17 

 
Outcome: The achievement gap between First Nations, Métis and Inuit (FNMI) students 

and all other students is eliminated. 
 
(Results and evaluations for FNMI measures are required for Public/Separate/Francophone School 
Authorities only) 
 

Performance Measure Results (in percentages)  Target Evaluation Targets 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2013 Achievement Improvement Overall 2014 2015 2016 

Overall percentage of self-
identified FNMI students in 
Grades 3, 6 and 9 who 
achieved the acceptable 
standard on Provincial 
Achievement Tests (overall 
cohort results). 

55.1 58.0 56.9 56.4 60.9 58.0 Very Low Improved 
Significantly Acceptable 62.0 64.0 66.0 

Overall percentage of self-
identified FNMI students in 
Grades 3, 6 and 9 who 
achieved the standard of 
excellence on Provincial 
Achievement Tests (overall 
cohort results). 

5.6 6.2 7.0 6.2 6.3 7.5 Very Low Maintained Concern 6.4 6.6 6.7 

Overall percentage of self-
identified FNMI students who 
achieved the acceptable 
standard on diploma 
examinations (overall results). 

75.9 73.8 78.1 74.7 75.8 79.0 Low Maintained Issue 77 79.8 82.0 

Overall percentage of self-
identified FNMI students who 
achieved the standard of 
excellence on diploma 
examinations (overall results). 

6.7 9.5 9.9 7.8 8.8 9.5 Low Maintained Issue 9.1 9.3 9.7 

 

Performance Measure Results (in percentages)  Target Evaluation Targets 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Achievement Improvement Overall 2014 2015 2016 

High School Completion Rate - 
Percentage of self-identified 
FNMI students who completed 
high school within three years 
of entering Grade 10. 

26.3 21.7 26.6 30.3 30.3 35.5 Very Low Improved Issue 33.2 35.6 39.5 

Drop Out Rate - annual dropout 
rate of self-identified FNMI 
students aged 14 to 18 

12.8 13.5 11.3 10.7 9.4 9.0 Very Low Improved 
Significantly Acceptable 9.3 9.1 8.9 

High school to post-secondary 
transition rate of self-identified 
FNMI students within six years 
of entering Grade 10. 

23.2 26.4 21.3 25.9 23.7 30.0 Very Low Maintained Concern 25.8 27.2 31.4 

Percentage of Grade 12 self-
identified FNMI students 
eligible for a Rutherford 
Scholarship. 

30.8 27.6 31.6 35.4 32.6 39.0 Very Low Maintained Concern 36.2 38.6 41 

Percentage of self-identified 
FNMI students writing four or 
more diploma exams within 
three years of entering Grade 
10. 

16.3 13.1 16.9 14.3 19.9 16.0 Very Low Improved 
Significantly Acceptable 20.3 21.5 23.0 

 
  



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 18 

Comment on Results  
Elementary and Junior High Results 
The percentage of students achieving the acceptable standard on Provincial Achievement Tests has increased 
by 5.4 per cent since 2009.  There is no clear trend in the percentage of students achieving the standard of 
excellence on Provincial Achievement Tests. 
 
When individual test results are reviewed, the District maintained results in 15 of the 22 measures, and results 
“improved” or “improved significantly” on the remaining seven measures, where comparisons can be made. 
 
Students were most successful in English Language Arts 6, where 70.3 per cent met the acceptable standard 
and Science 6, where 63.2 per cent met the acceptable standard. 
 
High School Results 
Overall, the positive trend to the ratings of “improved” or “improved significantly” in four of the nine categories 
demonstrates movement toward more success for FNMI students. 
 
The high school completion rate has increased by 4.0 per cent since 2008, while the drop-out rate decreased by 
3.4 per cent over the same time period. 
 
In the area of high school to post-secondary transition and eligibility for Rutherford Scholarship, no clear trend 
can be identified. 
 
The percentage of students writing four or more diploma exams has increased by 3.6 per cent since 2008. 
Strategies 
The following strategies will be enhanced and continue for 2013-2014: 
• Develop and implement FNMI literacy supports and resources. 
• Support and celebrate the success of First Nations, Métis and Inuit students through district supported 

events and projects such as the Honouring Celebration, Junior High Art Project. and Honouring Our 
Voices – FNMI Newsletter. 

• Monitor and track district First Nations, Métis and Inuit student enrolment data to support retention, 
transitions, and high school completion. 

• Collect data and monitor the progress of the 2020 Cohort of the self-identified First Nations, Métis, 
and Inuit students currently in Grade 6, to determine literacy status, supports, resources, and effective 
transitions to support high school completion. 

• Collaborate with the Research, Data and Knowledge unit regarding First Nations, Métis and Inuit 
student achievement data pertaining to student success and high school completion. 

• Collaborate with Alberta Education to: improve the Aboriginal Learner Data Collection Initiative 
(ALDCI) self-identification form so more FNMI student are willing to self-identify; and improve the 
accuracy and reporting of FNMI data. 

• Engage in conversation with parents/guardians as to the benefits and purpose of self-identifying their 
child as First Nations, Metis or Inuit. 

• Support the use of 10 locally developed Edu Kits across the District, that bridge culture and 
curriculum and provide a hands-on, minds-on opportunity for students and staff to be engaged in First 
Nations, Métis and Inuit education and culture.   

• Continue to collaborate with post-secondary institutions to support successful transition of FNMI 
students into programs and career pathways. 

• Continue to develop initiatives, supports, resources and strategies to increase student achievement, 
literacy attainment and high school completion. 

 
The following strategies are new for 2013-2014 and will complement and strengthen the ongoing 
strategies: 
• Conduct monthly professional learning sessions for district and out-of-district staff.  Sessions include:  

Universal Design for Learning Strategies: First Nations, Métis and Inuit perspectives; First Nations, 
Métis and Inuit Literacy: Making Connections; and Building a Foundation for First Nations, Métis and 
Inuit Success:  Practical Applications for Teachers. 

• Launch the First Nations, Métis and Inuit Seeing Self in Literature Project, in collaboration with 
University of Alberta, in three district sites, beginning January 2014. 

 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 19 

• Support Wichitowin Family Nights, Aboriginal Family Nights in Millwoods and the Tawow, and 
Northern Lights (Calder) Family Nights, which are held at various schools in the District.  

• Develop a First Nations, Métis and Inuit school resource to assist administrators in developing long 
term school plans to support the collective, identified needs of FNMI students utilizing differential 
funding.  Schools can tailor the plan to incorporate their vision and mission statements, build the 
school community’s capacity in FNMI education, support culturally responsive practices, engage all 
students in FNMI culture, and create a welcoming and inclusive environment for all students. 

• Engage junior and senior high school students and their parents/guardians for pathways to success 
and career planning, designed to enhance the relevance of learning, and to guide them in developing 
the competencies they need to make successful transitions into further learning, the world of work, 
post-secondary and beyond.  

• Support early learning and Aboriginal Headstart programs offered in the District. 
 
Notes: 
1. Aggregated PAT results are based upon a weighted average of percent meeting standards (Acceptable, Excellence). The weights are the number of 

students enrolled in each course. Courses included: English Language Arts (Grades 3, 6, 9), Science (Grades 6, 9), French Language Arts (Grades 
6, 9), Français (Grades 6, 9). The percentages achieving the acceptable standard include the percentages achieving the standard of excellence. 

2. Aggregated Diploma results are a weighted average of percent meeting standards (Acceptable, Excellence) on Diploma Examinations. The weights 
are the number of students writing the Diploma Examination for each course. Courses included: English Language Arts 30-1, English Language Arts 
30-2, French Language Arts 30-1, Français 30-1, Pure Mathematics 30, Applied Mathematics 30, Biology 30, Science 30. The percentages 
achieving the acceptable standard include the percentages achieving the standard of excellence. 

3. Diploma Examination Participation, High School Completion and High school to Post-secondary Transition rates are based upon a cohort of grade 
10 students who are tracked over time.   

4. Please note that the rules for Rutherford Scholarships changed in 2008, which increased the number of students eligible for Rutherford 
Scholarships. The history for the measure has been re-computed to allow for trends to be identified.  

5. Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 
 
 
 
  



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 20 

Goal Three:  Quality teaching and school leadership  
Outcome: Teacher preparation and professional growth focus on the competencies needed 

to help students learn. Effective learning and teaching is achieved through 
collaborative leadership. 

 

Performance Measure Results (in percentages) Target Evaluation Targets 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2013 Achievement Improvement Overall 2014 2015 2016 

Percentage of teachers, parents 
and students satisfied with the 
opportunity for students to receive 
a broad program of studies 
including fine arts, career, 
technology, and health and 
physical education. 

81.9 82.0 82.1 81.9 83.1  Very High Improved 
Significantly Excellent    

 
Comment on Results  
Percentage of teachers, parents and students satisfied with the opportunity for students to receive a 
broad program of studies including fine arts, career, technology, and health and physical education. 
This measure is made up of the aggregated responses to eight questions related to programs of study: 
• How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the opportunities your child has to learn about the following 

topics at school: Another language? 
• How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the opportunities your child has to learn about the following 

topics at school: Art? 
• How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the opportunities your child has to learn about the following 

topics at school: Computers? 
• How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the opportunities your child has to learn about the following 

topics at school: Drama? 
• How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the opportunities your child has to learn about the following 

topics at school: Health? 
• How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the opportunities your child has to learn about the following 

topics at school: Music? 
• How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the opportunities your child has to participate in physical 

education at school? 
• How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the variety of subjects available to your child at school? 
 
In the area of satisfaction that students have the opportunity to receive a broad program of studies, the District 
has an achievement rating of “very high” with the improvement for 2012-2013 rated as “improved significantly”.  
All three respondent groups, parents, teachers and students in Grades 4, 7 and 10, reported the highest level of 
satisfaction with “the opportunities your child has to participate in physical education at school”. 
 
As with the Province, teachers reported the highest level of satisfaction, followed by parents.   
 
Strategies 
The following strategies supported this outcome and will continue for 2013-2014: 
• Provide research support to district staff who are investigating or implementing educational practices 

to meet District Priorities, including competency development.  
• Offer Leadership and Excellence in Assessment Program (LEAP) sessions for teachers for University 

of Alberta course credit.  
• Offer the Second Language Educators Leadership Institute and the Leadership in Languages 

professional learning series to district and external teachers, principals and central leaders. 
• Engage school staff in targeted, job embedded professional learning opportunities through school 

catchment groups. These sessions are coordinated and facilitated by school-based staff, with some 
support from central consultants, and serve to enhance teaching as well as build leadership capacity 
of staff across the District. 

• Provide access to Google Apps for Education to facilitate online collaborative opportunities for all 
staff. Through this online communities of practice, teachers are able to develop and share resources 
with each other. 

 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 21 

• Offer the New Teacher Induction Program (NTIP) to support the transition of teachers new to the 
profession and/or new to the District as a way to attract, develop and retain quality teachers. 

• Provide monthly professional learning sessions for first and second year principals. 
• Host bi-annual Leadership Development camps to identify and support emerging leaders. 
• Provide one on one coaching, and consistent and intentional support to principals in relation to 

building leadership capacity as outlined in the Principal Quality Practice Standard. 
• Coordinate monthly professional learning sessions for principals through District Leadership 

meetings. 
• Develop and implement a competency-based model for leadership development across all staff 

groups.  During 2012-2013, Human Resources collaborated with district staff and the District Support 
Team to provide 226 emerging district leaders access to 15 face-to-face, online, and hybrid learning 
modules designed to address four of the competencies introduced. 

• Support teacher certificated staff (81 in 2012-2013) and exempt staff (three in 2012-2013) with 
access to tuition support and/or leave with an allowance to pursue post-secondary programs and 
course work related to literacy, working with ELLs, cultural studies including FNMI, mental health 
practices for schools, inclusive education, working with at risk learners, assessment, school 
leadership, educational technology, and curriculum. 

• Provide a training program for supply educational assistants (192 in 2012-2013), giving a pre-service 
introduction to the roles and responsibilities of the educational assistant, an introduction to the 
characteristics of students in need of specialized supports and services and strategies to support 
success, Non-Violent Crisis Intervention training, as well as focused observations/job shadowing.  

• Provide training for custodians through the Building Operators Certificate Program (95 in 2012-2013).  
Nineteen custodians participated in 5th Class Power Engineering prep and two Chargehands were 
sponsored to attend 4th Class Power Engineering at NAIT.  On the job, OHS and computer training 
were provided for more than 100 supply custodial staff. 

• Provide professional learning  related to business processes to permanent administrative assistants 
(75 in 2012-2013).  Three hundred and forty-two support staff with office duties accessed district 
software training. Five district support staff members participated in an Administrative Assistant 
preparation program. 

• Provide tuition reimbursement for employment related coursework, support for required certificate 
renewal, as well as access to paid leave for the completion of apprenticeship training for Maintenance 
staff.  Facilities Maintenance provided ongoing professional learning for district staff related to 
Occupational Health and Safety and the use of trades’ related equipment. 
 

The following strategies are new for 2013-2014 and will complement and strengthen the ongoing 
strategies: 
• Establish a community of practice to meet monthly to support teachers in meeting the learning needs 

of students who present with behavioural support needs.  
• Establish a community of practice to meet monthly to support teachers in providing meaningful 

engaged learning for all students through the use of Universal Design for Learning strategies.  
• Provide targeted professional learning for early years teachers with a focus on best practices in 

developing a play-based learning environment and understanding the implication of current research 
on brain development. 

• Host monthly Superintendent’s Community of Practice meetings to build leadership capacity and 
provide input into district level decision making. 

• Provide information sessions to district staff regarding the Government of Alberta Department of 
Education Ministerial Order (#001/2013) on Student Learning and directions of Inspiring Education. 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

  



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 22 

Goal Four:  Engaged and effective governance 
Outcome: The education system demonstrates collaboration and engagement. 
 

Performance Measure Results (in percentages) Target Evaluation Targets 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2013 Achievement Improvement Overall 2014 2015 2016 

Percentage of teachers and 
parents satisfied with parental 
involvement in decisions about 
their child's education. 

79.5 78.4 78.9 77.8 78.7 79.0 High Maintained Good    

Percentage of teachers, parents 
and students satisfied with the 
overall quality of basic education. 

91.2 90.1 90.6 90.6 91.2  Very High Improved 
Significantly Excellent    

 
Comment on Results  
Percentage of teachers and parents satisfied with parental involvement in decisions about their child's 
education. 
This measure is made up of the aggregated responses to five questions related to involvement in decisions 
about their child's education: 
• To what extent are you involved in decisions about your child's education? 
• To what extent are you involved in decisions at your child's school? 
• How satisfied or dissatisfied are you that your input into decisions at your child's school is considered? 
• How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the opportunity to be involved in decisions about your 

child's education? 
• How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the opportunity to be involved in decisions at your child's 

school? 
 
In the area of satisfaction that parents are involved in decisions about their child's education, the District has an 
achievement rating of “high” with the improvement for 2012-2013 rated as “maintained”.   
 
Percentage of teachers, parents and students satisfied with the overall quality of basic education. 
This measure is made up of the aggregated responses to six questions related to programs of study: 
• Your child clearly understands what he or she is expected to learn at school? 
• Your child finds school work challenging? 
• Your child finds school work interesting? 
• Your child is learning what he or she needs to know? 
• How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the quality of education your child is receiving at school? 
• How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the quality of teaching at your child’s school? 
 
In the area of satisfaction with the overall quality of basic education, the District has an achievement rating of 
“very high” with the improvement for 2012-2013 rated as “improved significantly”.    
 
As with the Province, teachers report the highest level of satisfaction, followed by students.   
 
Activities Completed 2012-2013 
• Conducted stakeholder engagement sessions around issues related to capacity challenges at two 

district schools, due to the high rate of new students residing the attendance areas.  Decisions were 
made to redirect Grades 8 and 9 students from each school to alternative schools for the 2013-2014 
school year. 

• Due to the high rate of new students residing in their attendance areas, expansions were initiated at 
A. Blair McPherson, Dr. Donald Massey and Michael Strembitsky schools through the addition of 
additional portable and modular classrooms.  Consultation was conducted around these challenges. 
Funding for the additions was secured through provincial funding requests, and the Board of Trustees 
approved utilization of Capital Reserve funds. 

• Several other developing areas were re-designated to alternate receiving schools, following 
stakeholder engagement.  The challenges in new areas and around new schools continues to grow, 
and additional new schools were requested within the Three-Year Capital Priorities Plan 2014 to 2017 
that was submitted to the province. 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 23 

• Following the submission of the Three-Year Capital Priorities Plan 2014 to 2017, the Government of 
Alberta announced funding on May 2, 2013, for a new K-6 school in Heritage Valley area and a K-9 
School in Terwillegar Heights area. 

 
Strategies 
The following strategies will be enhanced and continue for 2013-2014: 
• Provide parents/guardians, students and school staff with timely and comprehensive information 

about students through PowerSchool. 
• Partner with Region 5 Edmonton Regional Collaborative Service Delivery (RCSD) to develop a 

seamless delivery of services to students in need of specialized supports and services.  
• Apply a project management approach to district research projects to enhance stakeholder 

engagement. 
• Connect schools directly to the Provincial Approach to Student Information (PASI) system, using 

updated district technology and district student information protocols to ensure integrity of student 
enrolment information. 

• Engage and link over 120,000 parent/guardian accounts with the SchoolZone web portal to provide 
learning strategies and report on outcomes achieved. 

• Encourage district leaders to capitalize on their role as community leaders and engage with 
educational stakeholders in a way that promotes and strengthens educational opportunities for 
students. 

• Encourage school principals to strategically utilize community supports, resources and services to 
provide non-educational opportunities that enhance or complement the learning experience in 
schools. 

• Conduct online program reviews for selected language alternative programs. 
• Collaborate with other jurisdictions, post-secondary institutions, parent organizations and international 

government agencies through participation in seven provincial second languages education consortia. 
• Maintain district partnerships and corresponding collaborative activities with local, national and 

international partners in support of second language programming and intercultural interactions, and 
projects. 

• Provide services to other jurisdictions and educational stakeholders on a cost-recovery basis. 
• Provide an opportunity for stakeholders to provide informed feedback on draft policies through an 

online stakeholder survey. 
• Partner with Community University Partnership (CUP) for the study of children, youth and families. 
• Liaise with post-secondary institutions in Alberta to support external research opportunities for 

enhancing district knowledge to achieve District Priorities.  
• Leverage the collaborative working relationship of the City of Edmonton and Edmonton School 

Boards, established within the Joint Use Agreement, and the Province of Alberta. 
• Implement the new infrastructure planning principles policy by working with communities to develop 

an accommodation growth plan and begin the work of developing a comprehensive district 
infrastructure strategy.  

• Engage community in the preliminary planning for the new schools in the Heritage Valley and 
Terwillegar Heights areas. 

• Support for the development of School Councils. The District will host a school council training 
session on November 21, 2013, which will cover topics including the purpose of school councils; tips 
and tools to support effective fundraising activities and overall operations; as well as the benefits of 
networking with other school councils. 

• Partner with the Edmonton Catholic School Board to investigate the possibility of offering 
collaborative transportation service delivery on a city-wide basis.  In January 2014, both Boards of 
Trustees will be presented with an initial feasibility study. Additional research, detailed design, and 
phased implementation efforts may follow the January presentations. 

• Leverage collaborative relationships with other levels of government by engaging in ongoing joint 
orientation and professional development sessions with the Board of Trustees, Edmonton Catholic 
Schools Board of Trustees and City Councillors. 

• Continue meetings with the Board of Trustees and MLAs to enhance their ability to do joint advocacy 
work on important educational issues. 

• Develop a process that will result in a student representative being elected to the Board of Trustees 
for the 2014-2015 school year. This pilot project will be established to enhance dialogue between the 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 24 

District's student body and the Board of Trustees, increase student engagement in Board Policy, and 
educate students in democratic governance. 

• Develop an Engagement Framework to support Board of Trustees’ efforts to work strategically with 
parents and community stakeholders to capture input, feedback or perspectives around educational 
issues. The Board of Trustees will develop this framework in accordance with fulfilling their generative 
leadership role. 

 
The following strategy is new for 2013-2014 and will complement and strengthen the ongoing strategies: 
• Establish a new partnership with the Académie of Grenoble, France, to support school twinnings, 

educational projects, etc. for district schools. 
Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 
  



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 25 

Outcome: Students and communities have access to safe and healthy learning 
environments. 

 

Performance Measure Results (in percentages) Target Evaluation Targets 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2013 Achievement Improvement Overall 2014 2015 2016 

Percentage of teacher, parent 
and student agreement that: 
students are safe at school, are 
learning the importance of caring 
for others, are learning respect 
for others and are treated fairly in 
school. 

87.5 87.3 87.9 88.5 89.3  Very High Improved 
Significantly Excellent    

Percentage of teachers, parents 
and students indicating that their 
school and schools in their 
jurisdiction have improved or 
stayed the same the last three 
years. 

81.2 80.3 78.5 79.7 80.8  Very High Improved 
Significantly Excellent    

 
Comment on Results  
Percentage of teacher, parent and student agreement that students are safe at school, are learning the 
importance of caring for others, are learning respect for others and are treated fairly in school. 
This measure is made up of the aggregated responses to five statements related to safe and caring schools: 
• Students treat each other well at your child's school. 
• Teachers care about your child. 
• Your child is safe at school. 
• Your child is safe on the way to and from school. 
• Your child is treated fairly by adults at school. 
 
In the area of agreement that students are safe at school, are learning the importance of caring for others, are 
learning respect for others and are treated fairly in school, the District has an achievement rating of “very high” 
with the improvement for 2012-2013 rated as “improved significantly”.  
 
As with the Province, teachers report the highest level of satisfaction, followed by parents. 
 
Percentage of teachers, parents and students indicating that their school and schools in their 
jurisdiction have improved or stayed the same the last three years. 
This measure is made up of the aggregated responses to one question.  The District has an achievement rating 
of “very high” with the improvement for 2012-2013 rated as “improved significantly”. 
 
Strategies 
The following strategies will be enhanced and continue for 2013-2014: 
• Provide support through the Critical Incident Support Service, in response to critical situations (i.e., 

death of a staff member, child, parent). 
• Provide research and support for policies, practices, and procedures related to diversity and anti-

bullying programs. 
• Implement Administrative Regulation IF.AR – Safe, Caring and Respectful Learning Environments. 
• Implement the Move to Action: Bullying Prevention Toolkit which includes a district definition for 

bullying, and information and recommended tools/resources to support implementation of bullying 
prevention and citizenship development strategies. 

• Promote positive mental health for staff, through the coordination monthly activities, as well as daily 
activities during the month of May (as an extension to Mental Health week).   

• Provide opportunities for staff to receive training in mental health first aid as a way to create and 
sustain positive social learning environments. 

• Promote an online resource site for school-based positive mental health promotion for all grade 
levels. 

• Work with community partners such as Alberta Health Services, University of Alberta and Ever Active 
Schools to coordinate and maximize on resources available to support and sustain a culture of 
wellness. 

 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 26 

• Provide wellness resources for district staff from grant funds awarded by Alberta Healthy School 
Community Wellness. 

• Conduct internal Occupational Health and Safety audits to maintain the Certificate of Recognition 
status, as assessed by external auditors. 

• Work with the Alberta School Employee Benefit Plan (ASEBP) to Implement a district-wide Healthy 
Living Program (HLP), based on the success of the Healthy Living Pilot.  The HLP is an integrated, 
long-term program that provides staff members with a two-part assessment of their current health 
status and health risks, resources include lifestyle coaching to improve and sustain healthy 
behaviours, and support in the workplace for individual health practices. 

 
The following strategies are new for 2013-2014 and will complement and strengthen the ongoing 
strategies: 
• Combine Comprehensive School Health (CSH) services and Employee Health Services (EHS) in 

September 2013, creating an integrated Health Services department in Human Resources which 
coordinates resources to support safe and healthy learning and working environments for both 
students and staff.  

• Revise Board Policy GBE.BP and Administrative Regulation GBE.AR – Health and Wellness of Staff 
and Students to reflect the Framework for Kindergarten to Grade 12 wellness, as well as other 
recommended resources and current research. 

• Facilitate a coordinated approach to maximize on the available resources from the district Wellness 
Implementation Grant. 

• Host a district Wellness Professional Learning Day (which will focus on support for both staff and 
students) and provide additional healthy school networking opportunities with support from key 
community partners. 
 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 
  



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 27 

Note: 
 

• Including strategies for students with special needs satisfies the planning component of 14.a of the Standards for 
Special Education (amended June 2004) http://www.education.gov.ab.ca/k_12/specialneeds 

 
• Reporting on programs, services and results for students with special needs satisfies the non-financial reporting 

component of Section 14.a and c of the Standards for Special Education (June 2004) 
http://www.education.gov.ab.ca/k_12/specialneeds 

 

Future Challenges 
• Optimize support for students and families with mental health issues, which significantly impact the 

achievement of a student. 
• Create opportunities for schools to access external community agencies. 
• Examine, review and in many cases, change policy and regulation to be in compliance with the new 

Education Act, Bill 3.  
• Provide professional learning support to staff to assist them in meeting the requirements set out in 

the Ministerial Order (#001/2013) on Student Learning.  
• The District is experiencing challenges related to a significant reduction in provincial funding.  A lack 

of predictable, sustainable funding creates discontinuity in the District’s ability to provide programs 
and services necessary to support all students from year to year. 

 
 

Summary of Financial Results 
• To be presented to the Board of Trustees on December 17, 2013 

 

Budget Summary 
• To be presented to the Board of Trustees on December 17, 2013 

 

Capital and Facilities Projects 
Three Year Capital Plan 2013-2015 
Building Alberta Schools Construction Program (Formerly ASAP) 
Two new schools were announced by the Province of Alberta for Edmonton Public Schools in 2013: 
• K-9 900 students in Blackmud Creek neighbourhood in southwest Edmonton; and 
• K-6 600 students in Heritage Valley neighbourhood in south Edmonton. 
 
Previously Funded Capital Projects Status 
• Strathcona Senior High School (Phase 2 Modernization) was initiated in 2011-2012, with Alberta 

Infrastructure leading the Construction Management process. This project will be completed in 2013-
2014. 

• Forest Heights School (Phase 2 Modernization) was initiated in 2011-2012, with Alberta 
Infrastructure leading the Construction Management process. This project will be completed in 2013-
2014. 

• Eastglen Senior High School (Phase 2 Modernization) was completed. 
 
Modular and Portable Requests 
• Over the 2012-2013 school year, the District worked with Alberta Infrastructure and their agents to 

install two additional modular classrooms at Michael Strembitsky and Dr. Donald Massey schools.  
• Significant progress was made to relocate and upgrade existing district portables to: 

o A. Blair McPherson School (total of six portables); 
o Dr. Donald Massey School (total of two portables); and 
o Michael Strembitsky School (total of four portables) 

• Significant progress was made to place six modular classrooms purchased by the District at the 
following schools: 
o Michael Strembitsky School (two modular classrooms); and  
o Dr. Donald Massey School (four modular classrooms). 

 
Infrastructure Maintenance Renewal (IMR) and Other Projects 
Over 800 projects were initiated in 2012-2013 as part of the District’s annual Major Maintenance Plan, 

http://www.education.gov.ab.ca/k_12/specialneeds
http://www.education.gov.ab.ca/k_12/specialneeds


Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 28 

funded primarily through the IMR stream. This includes a skylight replacement project valued at 3.5 
million at J. Percy Page School which is currently in the planning stage. Construction is scheduled to 
begin this winter with completion in the fall of 2014. 
 

Summary of Facility and Capital Plans 
The District was actively involved in the area of planning for new school buildings, accommodating 
enrolment growth with modulars and portables, modernization projects and IMR project implementation 
in 2012-2013. 
 
The implications of 2012-2013 in the area of capital planning, facility planning and student 
accommodation included challenges related to: 
• accommodating all students residing in rapid growth areas at newer schools; 
• securing new schools to service rapidly growing areas; and 
• addressing deferred maintenance needs with funding available for IMR and modernization projects. 
 

 

Parental Involvement 
Parent/guardian and school council involvement in the creation of school plans and the sharing of school 
level results is a district-wide expectation. Parents/guardians and school council members are invited to 
attend the joint results review and budget plan presentation in November 2013. Assistant 
Superintendents of Schools work to support principals to ensure parents/guardians do have opportunities 
for input and involvement.  
 

 

Timelines and Communication 
After being approved by the Board of Trustees, this document will be uploaded to Alberta Education.  
Additionally, a summary of the AERR, the 3YEP and AERR will be posted on the district website. 
 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 
 

Page 29 

APPENDIX – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
 

The following pages include tables and graphs that provide detailed data for the performance measures.  Authorities may 
include these under each measure/outcome to provide context and help in interpreting the results. 

 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 30 

 
Diploma Examination Results – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
 
Diploma Exam Course by Course Results by Students Writing. 

 
Results (in percentages)   Target 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2013 
A E A E A E A E A E A E 

English Lang Arts 30-1 Authority 83.9 13.2 82.4 10.4 81.1 10.3 82.0 10.8 n/a n/a   
Province 86.1 12.3 85.1 10.1 84.4 10.1 86.0 11.3 n/a n/a   

English Lang Arts 30-2 Authority 83.2 7.4 83.3 8.1 82.6 7.1 83.2 7.1 n/a n/a   
Province 88.2 8.5 88.8 9.8 88.6 9.1 89.5 10.7 n/a n/a   

French Lang Arts 30-1 Authority 100.0 23.3 96.2 25.5 98.1 8.4 95.7 12.2 n/a n/a   
Province 95.1 18.9 93.7 16.3 95.3 14.3 95.5 13.4 n/a n/a   

Français 30-1 Authority n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a   
Province 94.7 33.1 94.2 15.6 93.8 20.1 96.5 19.0 n/a n/a   

Pure Mathematics 30 Authority 81.7 26.9 82.3 28.8 79.1 28.1 80.5 27.2 n/a n/a   
Province 82.1 26.3 82.9 29.7 81.0 28.7 81.8 27.1 n/a n/a   

Applied Mathematics 30 Authority 75.9 12.2 69.7 9.1 66.0 6.8 68.5 7.5 n/a n/a   
Province 79.4 13.5 77.3 12.6 74.3 9.8 75.6 10.3 n/a n/a   

Social Studies 30 Authority 84.6 22.4 69.7 10.2 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a   
Province 84.2 21.4 67.8 10.4 69.7 12.1 n/a n/a n/a n/a   

Social Studies 30-1 Authority n/a n/a 84.5 17.9 80.6 13.9 84.6 15.8 n/a n/a   
Province n/a n/a 84.5 16.1 82.8 14.9 86.2 16.7 n/a n/a   

Social Studies 33 Authority 82.4 17.0 71.3 14.7 * * n/a n/a n/a n/a   
Province 85.6 20.2 76.4 11.5 69.0 21.4 n/a n/a n/a n/a   

Social Studies 30-2 Authority n/a n/a 81.1 10.3 80.5 11.0 76.1 8.9 n/a n/a   
Province n/a n/a 85.0 13.7 85.6 15.9 83.1 13.7 n/a n/a   

Biology 30 Authority 85.5 27.0 82.3 29.7 82.9 32.4 82.8 29.1 n/a n/a   
Province 83.0 26.6 81.4 28.1 81.9 29.8 81.8 28.1 n/a n/a   

Chemistry 30 Old Authority 77.3 27.3 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a   
Province 77.6 19.5 87.5 37.5 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a   

Chemistry 30 Authority 77.9 27.9 78.7 30.4 75.2 28.9 76.6 28.9 n/a n/a   
Province 76.3 27.7 79.0 29.9 75.1 27.7 76.7 28.4 n/a n/a   

Physics 30 Old Authority 69.2 23.1 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a   
Province 74.4 25.6 75.0 25.0 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a   

Physics 30 Authority 80.3 25.9 74.2 20.2 77.0 26.8 80.5 30.6 n/a n/a   
Province 79.3 23.1 73.9 20.3 76.7 27.7 81.0 30.3 n/a n/a   

Science 30 Authority 84.8 24.0 83.4 28.0 82.8 28.0 83.5 26.3 n/a n/a   
Province 86.0 20.9 80.1 22.8 80.4 21.0 79.8 22.0 n/a n/a   

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

“A” = Acceptable; “E” = Excellence — the percentages achieving the acceptable standard include the percentages achieving the standard of 
excellence. 

  



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 31 

 

Graph of Diploma Examination Results – Overall (optional) 

 
 

  

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
R

es
ul

ts
(%

) 
Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 32 

Diploma Examination Results by Course (optional) 

  

 

 
[No Data for Français 30] 

  

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 
  

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

English Lang Arts 30-1 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

English Lang Arts 30-2 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

French Lang Arts 30-1 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Pure Mathematics 30 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Applied Mathematics 30 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 33 

Diploma Examination Results by Course (optional) 

 
[No Data for Social Studies 30] 

 

  

 

 
[No Data for Chemistry 30 Old] 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 
  

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Social Studies 30-1 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Social Studies 33 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Social Studies 30-2 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Biology 30 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 34 

Diploma Examination Results by Course (optional) 

 

 
[No Data for Physics 30 Old] 

  

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 
 

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Chemistry 30 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Physics 30 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Science 30 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 35 

Diploma Examination Results Course By Course Summary With Measure Evaluation (optional) 
 
  Edmonton School District No. 7 Alberta 
  Achievement Improvement Overall 2013 Prev 3 Yr Avg 2013 Prev 3 Yr Avg 

Course Measure    N % N % N % N % 
English Lang Arts 30-1 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,052 81.8 n/a n/a 29,181 85.2 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,052 10.5 n/a n/a 29,181 10.5 
English Lang Arts 30-2 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 2,020 83.0 n/a n/a 14,473 89.0 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 2,020 7.4 n/a n/a 14,473 9.8 
French Lang Arts 30-1 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 109 96.7 n/a n/a 1,267 94.8 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 109 15.4 n/a n/a 1,267 14.7 
Français 30-1 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 147 94.8 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 147 18.2 
Pure Mathematics 30 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 4,143 80.6 n/a n/a 22,547 81.9 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 4,143 28.0 n/a n/a 22,547 28.5 
Applied Mathematics 30 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 1,489 68.0 n/a n/a 10,479 75.7 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 1,489 7.8 n/a n/a 10,479 10.9 
Social Studies 30-1 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 3,932 83.2 n/a n/a 23,525 84.5 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 3,932 15.9 n/a n/a 23,525 15.9 
Social Studies 30-2 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 1,934 79.2 n/a n/a 16,211 84.6 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 1,934 10.1 n/a n/a 16,211 14.4 
Biology 30 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 3,991 82.7 n/a n/a 22,820 81.7 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 3,991 30.4 n/a n/a 22,820 28.7 
Chemistry 30 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 3,501 76.8 n/a n/a 19,217 76.9 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 3,501 29.4 n/a n/a 19,217 28.7 
Physics 30 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 2,161 77.3 n/a n/a 10,527 77.2 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 2,161 25.9 n/a n/a 10,527 26.1 
Science 30 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 1,368 83.2 n/a n/a 5,274 80.1 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 1,368 27.4 n/a n/a 5,274 21.9 
Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

Achievement Evaluation is not calculated for courses that do not have sufficient data available, either due to too few jurisdictions offering the course or 
because of changes in examinations. 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 36 

Measure Evaluation Reference - Achievement Evaluation 
 
Achievement evaluation is based upon a comparison of Current Year data to a set of standards which remain consistent over time. The 
Standards are calculated by taking the 3 year average of baseline data for each measure across all school jurisdictions and calculating the 
5th, 25th, 75th, and 95th percentiles. Once calculated, these standards remain in place from year to year to allow for consistent planning and 
evaluation. 
 
The table below shows the range of values defining the 5 achievement evaluation levels for each measure. 

Course Measure Very Low Low Intermediate High Very High 
English Lang Arts 30-1 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 83.76 83.76 - 92.02 92.02 - 95.13 95.13 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 6.22 6.22 - 13.46 13.46 - 20.88 20.88 - 27.39 27.39 - 100.00 
English Lang Arts 30-2 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 70.83 70.83 - 82.43 82.43 - 90.72 90.72 - 96.00 96.00 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 0.00 0.00 - 3.13 3.13 - 8.65 8.65 - 11.61 11.61 - 100.00 
French Lang Arts 30-1 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 77.27 77.27 - 93.33 93.33 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 100.00 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 0.00 0.00 - 5.49 5.49 - 19.84 19.84 - 28.00 28.00 - 100.00 
Pure Mathematics 30 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 54.07 54.07 - 76.74 76.74 - 86.06 86.06 - 92.18 92.18 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 6.15 6.15 - 18.46 18.46 - 29.38 29.38 - 34.62 34.62 - 100.00 
Applied Mathematics 30 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 73.06 73.06 - 80.94 80.94 - 90.03 90.03 - 91.69 91.69 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 4.57 4.57 - 10.29 10.29 - 16.08 16.08 - 23.77 23.77 - 100.00 
Biology 30 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 67.51 67.51 - 78.03 78.03 - 85.82 85.82 - 89.41 89.41 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 12.33 12.33 - 19.00 19.00 - 25.60 25.60 - 30.05 30.05 - 100.00 
Chemistry 30 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 37.40 37.40 - 64.26 64.26 - 77.96 77.96 - 85.58 85.58 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 6.52 6.52 - 16.78 16.78 - 27.40 27.40 - 34.23 34.23 - 100.00 
Physics 30 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 46.89 46.89 - 65.43 65.43 - 79.07 79.07 - 84.34 84.34 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 4.05 4.05 - 11.60 11.60 - 21.19 21.19 - 30.24 30.24 - 100.00 
Science 30 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 76.11 76.11 - 83.33 83.33 - 91.76 91.76 - 97.14 97.14 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 6.98 6.98 - 11.36 11.36 - 21.80 21.80 - 36.81 36.81 - 100.00 
Notes: 

The range of values at each evaluation level is interpreted as greater than or equal to the lower value, and less than the higher value. For the 
Very High evaluation level, values range from greater than or equal to the lower value to 100%. 

Achievement Evaluation is not calculated for courses that do not have sufficient data available, either due to too few jurisdictions offering the 
course or because of changes in examinations. 
 
Improvement Table 
 
For each jurisdiction, improvement evaluation consists of comparing the Current Year result for each measure with the previous three-year 
average. A chi-square statistical test is used to determine the significance of the improvement. This test takes into account the size of the 
jurisdiction in the calculation to make improvement evaluation fair across jurisdictions of different sizes. 
 
The table below shows the definition of the 5 improvement evaluation levels based upon the chi-square result. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Overall Evaluation Table 
 
The overall evaluation combines the Achievement Evaluation and the Improvement Evaluation. The table below illustrates how the 
Achievement and Improvement evaluations are combined to get the overall evaluation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Evaluation Category Chi-Square Range 
Declined Significantly 3.84 +  (current < previous 3-year average) 
Declined 1.00 - 3.83 (current < previous 3-year average) 
Maintained less than 1.00 
Improved 1.00 - 3.83 (current > previous 3-year average) 
Improved Significantly 3.84 + (current > previous 3-year average) 
 

 Achievement 
 Very High High Intermediate Low Very Low 
Improved Significantly Excellent Good Good Good Acceptable 
Improved Excellent Good Good Acceptable Issue 
Maintained Excellent Good Acceptable Issue Concern 
Declined Good Acceptable Issue Issue Concern 
Declined Significantly Acceptable Issue Issue Concern Concern 
 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 37 

High School Completion Rate – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
High School Completion Rate - percentages of students who completed high school within three, four and five years of entering 
Grade 10. 
 Authority Province 
 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
3 Year Completion 65.7 67.1 67.3 68.0 69.8 70.8 71.5 72.6 74.1 74.8 
4 Year Completion 71.1 71.3 72.6 73.0 74.3 76.3 76.1 76.9 78.1 79.4 
5 Year Completion 73.7 74.4 74.9 76.1 76.5 78.7 79.0 79.0 79.6 80.8 
 

Graph of Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Graph of Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Graph of Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

0

20

40

60

80

100

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

3 Year Completion

0

20

40

60

80

100

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

4 Year Completion

0

20

40

60

80

100

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

5 Year Completion



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 38 

Drop Out Rate – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
Drop Out Rate - annual dropout rate of students aged 14 to 18 
 Authority Province 
 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
Drop Out Rate 5.7 5.6 4.9 4.3 3.6 4.8 4.3 4.2 3.2 3.5 
Returning Rate 22.1 26.2 27.9 25.3 23.6 19.8 23.5 27.9 23.4 23.0 
 

Graph of Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Graph of Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

0

20

40

60

80

100

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Drop Out Rate

0

20

40

60

80

100

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Returning Rate



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 39 

High School to Post-secondary Transition Rate – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
High school to post-secondary transition rate of students within four and six years of entering Grade 10. 
 Authority Province 
 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
4 Year Rate 39.9 37.9 40.2 40.5 40.5 38.9 37.5 37.8 38.2 39.6 
6 Year Rate 59.6 61.1 59.9 58.9 61.5 59.2 59.8 59.3 58.4 59.5 
 

Graph of Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Graph of Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

0

20

40

60

80

100

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

4 Year (%)

0

20

40

60

80

100

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

6 Year (%)



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 40 

Rutherford Eligibility Rate – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
Percentage of Grade 12 students eligible for a Rutherford Scholarship. 
 Authority Province 
 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
Rutherford Scholarship Eligibility Rate (Revised) 56.2 57.1 59.7 62.1 60.7 57.3 56.9 59.6 61.5 61.3 
 
Rutherford eligibility rate details. 

Reporting 
School Year 

Total 
Students 

Grade 10 Rutherford Grade 11 Rutherford Grade 12 Rutherford Overall 
Number of 
Students 
Eligible 

Percent of 
Students 
Eligible 

Number of 
Students 
Eligible 

Percent of 
Students 
Eligible 

Number of 
Students 
Eligible 

Percent of 
Students 
Eligible 

Number of 
Students 
Eligible 

Percent of 
Students 
Eligible 

2008 8105 3861 47.6 3605 44.5 2409 29.7 4556 56.2 
2009 8347 4017 48.1 3899 46.7 2527 30.3 4768 57.1 
2010 8719 4388 50.3 4201 48.2 2788 32.0 5208 59.7 
2011 8576 4495 52.4 4335 50.5 2772 32.3 5322 62.1 
2012 8884 4646 52.3 4367 49.2 2646 29.8 5393 60.7 

 

Graph of Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

% Eligible for Scholarship



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 41 

Diploma Examination Participation Rate – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
Diploma examination participation rate: Percentage of students writing 0 to 6 or more Diploma Examinations by the end of their 3rd 
year of high school. 
 

Authority Province 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

% Writing 0 Exams 20.2 19.8 19.0 18.1 16.9 18.4 18.0 17.2 16.1 15.9 
% Writing 1+ Exams 79.8 80.2 81.0 81.9 83.1 81.6 82.0 82.8 83.9 84.1 
% Writing 2+ Exams 75.9 76.9 77.7 77.9 79.8 78.0 78.7 79.6 80.8 81.2 
% Writing 3+ Exams 65.1 66.7 67.9 68.0 69.8 64.9 65.2 66.0 67.4 67.5 
% Writing 4+ Exams 54.9 57.6 58.4 58.8 61.4 53.3 53.5 54.9 56.2 56.6 
% Writing 5+ Exams 37.9 40.4 41.8 43.3 44.8 34.3 34.7 36.1 37.2 38.0 
% Writing 6+ Exams 16.4 17.9 18.9 20.0 21.4 12.7 12.9 13.4 14.1 14.6 
 

Graph of Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

 
Percentage of students writing 1 or more Diploma Examinations by the end of their 3rd year of high school, by course and subject. 
 

Authority Province 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

English 30 / English Language Arts 30-1 53.4 56.7 57.1 57.7 59.9 53.8 54.0 54.5 54.9 55.1 
English 33 / English Language Arts 30-2 22.6 21.3 21.5 22.1 21.2 24.0 24.5 25.1 26.1 26.1 
Total of 1 or more English Diploma Exams 74.3 75.5 76.3 77.0 78.4 76.7 77.1 78.0 79.0 79.2 
Social Studies 30 49.8 52.3 4.2 0.2 0.0 48.1 48.1 3.7 0.3 0.0 
Social Studies 30-1 0.0 0.0 49.7 54.6 55.6 0.0 0.0 45.7 48.2 48.0 
Social Studies 33 25.5 24.0 2.0 0.1 0.0 29.5 30.1 2.5 0.1 0.0 
Social Studies 30-2 0.0 0.0 21.6 23.0 24.1 0.0 0.0 27.4 31.0 32.1 
Total of 1 or more Social Diploma Exams 74.0 75.2 75.7 76.6 78.3 76.7 77.4 78.1 78.9 79.3 
Mathematics 30 / Pure Mathematics 30 43.7 45.4 46.8 48.3 49.7 41.1 40.8 41.4 42.6 42.5 
Mathematics 33 / Applied Mathematics 30 16.6 16.0 16.2 15.1 15.2 19.1 19.7 19.7 20.0 19.6 
Total of 1 or more Math Diploma Exams 59.7 61.1 62.4 63.0 64.3 59.7 59.9 60.6 62.0 61.5 
Biology 30 40.9 43.4 44.1 44.8 46.5 39.1 39.8 41.2 42.8 43.1 
Chemistry 30 Old 36.9 5.1 0.0 n/a n/a 34.5 5.0 0.1 n/a n/a 
Chemistry 30 n/a 33.2 38.9 39.6 41.2 n/a 29.7 35.2 36.0 36.7 
Physics 30 Old 24.1 4.3 0.2 n/a n/a 20.4 2.4 0.1 n/a n/a 
Physics 30 n/a 20.9 25.9 26.8 27.5 n/a 17.5 20.0 20.6 20.4 
Science 30 10.9 13.5 13.5 14.0 15.7 7.4 8.2 9.0 9.1 10.5 
Total of 1 or more Science Diploma Exams 58.5 60.7 61.7 62.2 64.5 56.1 56.1 57.6 59.1 59.5 
Français 30-1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 
French Language Arts 30 1.0 1.3 1.6 1.7 1.7 2.7 2.7 2.9 2.8 2.7 
Total of 1 or more French Diploma Exams 1.0 1.3 1.6 1.7 1.7 2.9 2.9 3.1 3.1 2.9 
Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

0

20

40

60

80

100

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

% Writing 4+ Exams



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 42 

Provincial Achievement Test Results – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
 
PAT Course by Course Results by Number Enrolled. 

 
Results (in percentages)   Target 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2013 
A E A E A E A E A E A E 

English Language Arts 3 Authority 79.9 17.6 79.7 19.4 81.7 15.8 81.4 19.5 n/a n/a   
Province 81.3 18.2 81.6 19.5 81.8 17.5 81.9 20.4 n/a n/a   

French Language Arts 3 Authority 86.7 14.6 80.5 15.5 80.2 17.3 82.2 11.9 n/a n/a   
Province 83.8 15.8 84.1 16.3 80.6 15.8 82.1 14.5 n/a n/a   

Français 3 Authority n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a   
Province 82.5 16.3 86.4 16.3 84.2 18.6 82.3 12.5 n/a n/a   

Mathematics 3 Authority n/a n/a n/a n/a 78.9 27.1 78.1 27.4 n/a n/a   
Province n/a n/a n/a n/a 77.4 26.0 76.8 25.5 n/a n/a   

English Language Arts 6 Authority 81.9 19.0 83.1 19.3 83.8 20.6 83.4 18.4 n/a n/a   
Province 81.8 18.9 83.3 18.9 83.0 18.5 82.7 17.8 n/a n/a   

French Language Arts 6 Authority 89.6 20.8 87.8 19.9 92.0 20.1 90.5 21.3 n/a n/a   
Province 91.5 15.9 88.3 15.9 89.4 17.1 89.3 17.2 n/a n/a   

Français 6 Authority n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a   
Province 92.6 18.7 91.3 18.3 92.2 17.6 91.0 21.9 n/a n/a   

Mathematics 6 Authority n/a n/a n/a n/a 75.4 22.0 76.3 18.9 n/a n/a   
Province n/a n/a n/a n/a 73.7 17.8 74.7 16.6 n/a n/a   

Science 6 Authority 78.5 29.1 79.1 31.5 80.0 31.9 81.6 32.9 n/a n/a   
Province 76.5 24.8 76.8 26.4 76.2 25.0 77.8 28.2 n/a n/a   

Social Studies 6 Authority n/a n/a 73.9 19.9 74.2 23.4 76.6 21.9 n/a n/a   
Province n/a n/a 71.0 16.4 71.1 18.5 73.2 19.5 n/a n/a   

English Language Arts 9 Authority 78.1 17.7 79.7 18.0 80.1 18.6 78.1 18.3 n/a n/a   
Province 78.7 14.7 79.3 15.0 79.1 16.3 77.4 16.4 n/a n/a   

English Lang Arts 9 KAE Authority n/a n/a 59.7 7.1 60.0 4.5 53.6 4.2 n/a n/a   
Province n/a n/a 66.8 7.8 67.2 7.9 61.4 5.8 n/a n/a   

French Language Arts 9 Authority 83.1 15.3 92.5 9.7 94.9 13.5 84.1 7.2 n/a n/a   
Province 81.8 10.3 86.1 12.4 88.8 15.0 87.5 12.2 n/a n/a   

Français 9 Authority n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a   
Province 85.6 12.9 84.3 12.7 90.2 15.8 84.6 16.1 n/a n/a   

Mathematics 9 Authority n/a n/a n/a n/a 68.7 23.1 69.2 24.1 n/a n/a   
Province n/a n/a n/a n/a 66.1 17.3 66.5 17.8 n/a n/a   

Mathematics 9 KAE Authority n/a n/a 63.9 13.0 57.2 10.3 55.6 15.3 n/a n/a   
Province n/a n/a 65.6 15.3 64.9 14.9 62.4 15.4 n/a n/a   

Science 9 Authority 74.7 22.2 76.4 24.7 78.9 29.1 77.7 29.9 n/a n/a   
Province 72.2 15.8 73.6 17.7 74.9 20.8 74.2 22.4 n/a n/a   

Science 9 KAE Authority n/a n/a 66.7 18.6 61.9 14.4 65.3 16.5 n/a n/a   
Province n/a n/a 67.2 14.3 69.5 15.3 67.9 17.3 n/a n/a   

Social Studies 9 Authority n/a n/a 73.5 24.7 71.9 25.6 72.9 25.6 n/a n/a   
Province n/a n/a 68.9 18.8 67.2 19.0 68.9 19.1 n/a n/a   

Social Studies 9 KAE Authority n/a n/a 64.5 20.0 58.3 14.7 58.6 14.5 n/a n/a   
Province n/a n/a 64.6 15.7 61.9 13.6 63.5 13.9 n/a n/a   

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

“A” = Acceptable; “E” = Excellence — the percentages achieving the acceptable standard include the percentages achieving the standard of 
excellence. 

  



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 43 

 
 

Graph of Overall Provincial Achievement Test Results (optional) 

 
 

 
  

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
R

es
ul

ts
(%

) 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 44 

Graph of Provincial Achievement Test Results by Course (optional) 

 
 

 
 

 
[No Data for Français 3] 

 

 

  

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 
  

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

English Language Arts 3 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

French Language Arts 3 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Mathematics 3 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

English Language Arts 6 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

French Language Arts 6 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 45 

Graph of Provincial Achievement Test Results by Course (optional) 

 
[No Data for Français 6] 

 

  

  

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 
  

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Mathematics 6 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Science 6 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Social Studies 6 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

English Language Arts 9 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

English Lang Arts 9 KAE 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 46 

Graph of Provincial Achievement Test Results by Course (optional) 

 

 
[No Data for Français 9] 

  

  

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 
  

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

French Language Arts 9 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Mathematics 9 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Mathematics 9 KAE 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Science 9 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Science 9 KAE 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 47 

Graph of Provincial Achievement Test Results by Course (optional) 

  

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Social Studies 9 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
ts

(%
) 

Social Studies 9 KAE 

Acceptable Standard %

Standard of Excellence %



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 48 

PAT Results Course By Course Summary By Enrolled With Measure Evaluation (optional) 
 
  Edmonton School District No. 7 Alberta 
  Achievement Improvement Overall 2013 Prev 3 Yr Avg 2013 Prev 3 Yr Avg 

Course Measure    N % N % N % N % 
English Language Arts 3 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,527 80.9 n/a n/a 43,231 81.8 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,527 18.2 n/a n/a 43,231 19.2 
French Language Arts 3 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 315 81.0 n/a n/a 3,192 82.3 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 315 14.9 n/a n/a 3,192 15.6 
Français 3 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 516 84.3 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 516 15.8 
Mathematics 3 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,612 78.5 n/a n/a 43,823 77.1 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,612 27.2 n/a n/a 43,823 25.8 
English Language Arts 6 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,568 83.5 n/a n/a 43,401 83.0 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,568 19.4 n/a n/a 43,401 18.4 
French Language Arts 6 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 210 90.1 n/a n/a 2,571 89.0 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 210 20.4 n/a n/a 2,571 16.7 
Français 6 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 454 91.5 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 454 19.3 
Mathematics 6 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,497 75.9 n/a n/a 43,355 74.2 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,497 20.5 n/a n/a 43,355 17.2 
Science 6 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,553 80.2 n/a n/a 43,341 76.9 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,553 32.1 n/a n/a 43,341 26.5 
Social Studies 6 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,570 74.9 n/a n/a 43,436 71.8 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,570 21.7 n/a n/a 43,436 18.1 
English Language Arts 9 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,809 79.3 n/a n/a 42,995 78.6 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,809 18.3 n/a n/a 42,995 15.9 
English Lang Arts 9 KAE Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 241 57.8 n/a n/a 1,616 65.2 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 241 5.3 n/a n/a 1,616 7.2 
French Language Arts 9 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 200 90.5 n/a n/a 2,359 87.5 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 200 10.1 n/a n/a 2,359 13.2 
Français 9 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 324 86.3 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 324 14.8 
Mathematics 9 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,658 68.9 n/a n/a 42,224 66.3 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,658 23.6 n/a n/a 42,224 17.6 
Mathematics 9 KAE Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 249 58.9 n/a n/a 1,924 64.3 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 249 12.9 n/a n/a 1,924 15.2 
Science 9 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,789 77.7 n/a n/a 42,870 74.2 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,789 27.9 n/a n/a 42,870 20.3 
Science 9 KAE Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 236 64.6 n/a n/a 1,562 68.2 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 236 16.5 n/a n/a 1,562 15.6 
Social Studies 9 Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,813 72.7 n/a n/a 43,109 68.4 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5,813 25.3 n/a n/a 43,109 19.0 
Social Studies 9 KAE Acceptable Standard n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 238 60.5 n/a n/a 1,573 63.3 

Standard of Excellence n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 238 16.4 n/a n/a 1,573 14.4 
Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

Achievement Evaluation is not calculated for courses that do not have sufficient data available, either due to too few jurisdictions offering the course or 
because of changes in tests.  



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 49 

Measure Evaluation Reference - Achievement Evaluation 
 
Achievement evaluation is based upon a comparison of Current Year data to a set of standards which remain consistent over time. The 
Standards are calculated by taking the 3 year average of baseline data for each measure across all school jurisdictions and calculating the 
5th, 25th, 75th, and 95th percentiles. Once calculated, these standards remain in place from year to year to allow for consistent planning and 
evaluation. 
 
The table below shows the range of values defining the 5 achievement evaluation levels for each measure. 

Course Measure Very Low Low Intermediate High Very High 
English Language Arts 3 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 72.53 72.53 - 80.49 80.49 - 89.12 89.12 - 93.04 93.04 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 6.06 6.06 - 11.35 11.35 - 16.93 16.93 - 20.27 20.27 - 100.00 
French Language Arts 3 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 60.68 60.68 - 77.74 77.74 - 88.22 88.22 - 94.87 94.87 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 3.31 3.31 - 8.38 8.38 - 17.31 17.31 - 25.31 25.31 - 100.00 
English Language Arts 6 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 67.95 67.95 - 78.40 78.40 - 86.09 86.09 - 91.37 91.37 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 6.83 6.83 - 11.65 11.65 - 17.36 17.36 - 22.46 22.46 - 100.00 
French Language Arts 6 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 41.69 41.69 - 73.54 73.54 - 92.32 92.32 - 97.93 97.93 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 2.72 2.72 - 8.13 8.13 - 15.29 15.29 - 23.86 23.86 - 100.00 
Science 6 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 60.36 60.36 - 78.51 78.51 - 86.46 86.46 - 90.64 90.64 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 11.74 11.74 - 17.42 17.42 - 25.34 25.34 - 34.31 34.31 - 100.00 
English Language Arts 9 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 63.55 63.55 - 75.66 75.66 - 83.70 83.70 - 90.27 90.27 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 5.96 5.96 - 9.43 9.43 - 14.72 14.72 - 20.46 20.46 - 100.00 
French Language Arts 9 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 67.59 67.59 - 81.33 81.33 - 92.06 92.06 - 97.26 97.26 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 1.67 1.67 - 6.81 6.81 - 17.11 17.11 - 28.68 28.68 - 100.00 
Science 9 Acceptable Standard 0.00 - 50.57 50.57 - 60.14 60.14 - 72.50 72.50 - 76.89 76.89 - 100.00 

Standard of Excellence 0.00 - 3.39 3.39 - 6.71 6.71 - 11.81 11.81 - 15.85 15.85 - 100.00 
 
Notes: 

The range of values at each evaluation level is interpreted as greater than or equal to the lower value, and less than the higher value. For the 
Very High evaluation level, values range from greater than or equal to the lower value to 100%. 

Achievement Evaluation is not calculated for courses that do not have sufficient data available, either due to too few jurisdictions offering the 
course or because of changes in tests.  
 
Improvement Table  
For each jurisdiction, improvement evaluation consists of comparing the Current Year result for each measure with the previous three-year 
average. A chi-square statistical test is used to determine the significance of the improvement. This test takes into account the size of the 
jurisdiction in the calculation to make improvement evaluation fair across jurisdictions of different sizes. 
 
The table below shows the definition of the 5 improvement evaluation levels based upon the chi-square result. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Overall Evaluation Table 
 
The overall evaluation combines the Achievement Evaluation and the Improvement Evaluation. The table below illustrates how the 
Achievement and Improvement evaluations are combined to get the overall evaluation. 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Evaluation Category Chi-Square Range 
Declined Significantly 3.84 +  (current < previous 3-year average) 
Declined 1.00 - 3.83 (current < previous 3-year average) 
Maintained less than 1.00 
Improved 1.00 - 3.83 (current > previous 3-year average) 
Improved Significantly 3.84 + (current > previous 3-year average) 
 

 Achievement 
 Very High High Intermediate Low Very Low 
Improved Significantly Excellent Good Good Good Acceptable 
Improved Excellent Good Good Acceptable Issue 
Maintained Excellent Good Acceptable Issue Concern 
Declined Good Acceptable Issue Issue Concern 
Declined Significantly Acceptable Issue Issue Concern Concern 
 



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 50 

Citizenship – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
Percentage of teachers, parents and students who are satisfied that students model the characteristics of active citizenship. 
 Authority Province 
 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Overall 81.5 82.2 82.4 83.2 84.4 80.3 81.4 81.9 82.5 83.4 
Teacher 92.0 92.5 91.9 93.4 93.6 91.8 93.0 92.7 93.1 93.6 
Parent 77.8 79.6 79.2 79.6 81.5 77.4 78.5 78.6 79.4 80.3 
Student 74.7 74.5 76.0 76.5 78.1 71.8 72.7 74.5 75.0 76.2 
 

Graph of Overall Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Graph of Detailed Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

 

Work Preparation – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
Percentage of teachers and parents who agree that students are taught attitudes and behaviours that will make them successful at 
work when they finish school. 
 Authority Province 
 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Overall 80.9 80.6 81.0 80.6 82.1 79.6 79.9 80.1 79.7 80.3 
Teacher 88.1 89.4 89.0 89.2 89.7 88.9 90.0 89.6 89.5 89.4 
Parent 73.7 71.8 73.0 72.0 74.5 70.2 69.8 70.6 69.9 71.1 
 

Graph of Overall Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Graph of Detailed Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall Parent

Student Teacher

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall Parent Teacher



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 51 

Lifelong Learning – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
Percentage of teacher and parent satisfaction that students demonstrate the knowledge, skills and attitudes necessary for lifelong 
learning. 
 Authority Province 
 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Overall 68.8 67.3 67.9 68.1 68.8 67.4 67.6 67.9 68.0 68.5 
Teacher 74.2 74.1 74.3 74.9 75.3 74.0 75.4 75.3 75.8 75.7 
Parent 63.4 60.4 61.5 61.2 62.2 60.8 59.8 60.6 60.2 61.2 
 

Graph of Overall Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Graph of Detailed Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

 

Program of Studies – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
Percentage of teachers, parents and students satisfied with the opportunity for students to receive a broad program of studies 
including fine arts, career, technology, and health and physical education. 
 Authority Province 
 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Overall 81.9 82.0 82.1 81.9 83.1 80.3 80.5 80.9 80.7 81.5 
Teacher 88.6 88.6 88.7 88.6 88.8 86.8 87.7 87.6 87.3 87.9 
Parent 80.1 80.7 80.4 79.9 81.2 78.7 78.0 78.3 78.1 78.9 
Student 77.0 76.8 77.2 77.1 79.4 75.3 75.9 76.9 76.9 77.8 
 

Graph of Overall Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Graph of Detailed Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 
  

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
R

es
ul

t (
%

) 
Overall Parent Teacher

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall Parent

Student Teacher



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 52 

Parental Involvement – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
Percentage of teachers and parents satisfied with parental involvement in decisions about their child's education. 
 Authority Province 
 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Overall 79.5 78.4 78.9 77.8 78.7 80.1 80.0 79.9 79.7 80.3 
Teacher 85.7 85.1 85.7 84.6 85.3 88.0 88.6 88.1 88.0 88.5 
Parent 73.3 71.6 72.1 71.0 72.0 72.2 71.3 71.7 71.4 72.2 
 

Graph of Overall Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Graph of Detailed Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

 
Education Quality – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
Percentage of teachers, parents and students satisfied with the overall quality of basic education. 
 Authority Province 
 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Overall 91.2 90.1 90.6 90.6 91.2 89.3 89.2 89.4 89.4 89.8 
Teacher 96.2 96.2 96.2 96.4 96.2 95.3 95.6 95.5 95.4 95.7 
Parent 87.7 85.6 86.2 85.9 87.2 84.4 83.9 84.2 84.2 84.9 
Student 89.6 88.4 89.3 89.5 90.1 88.3 88.2 88.5 88.6 88.7 
 

Graph of Overall Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Graph of Detailed Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

 
  

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall Parent Teacher

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall Parent

Student Teacher



Authority: 3020 Edmonton School District No. 7 
 

Page 53 

Safe and Caring – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
Percentage of teacher, parent and student agreement that: students are safe at school, are learning the importance of caring for 
others, are learning respect for others and are treated fairly in school. 
 Authority Province 
 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Overall 87.5 87.3 87.9 88.5 89.3 86.9 87.6 88.1 88.6 89.0 
Teacher 93.5 94.0 93.8 94.5 94.8 93.8 94.4 94.5 94.8 95.0 
Parent 85.8 85.8 86.4 87.1 88.1 85.3 86.1 86.6 87.4 87.8 
Student 83.0 82.3 83.5 83.9 85.0 81.7 82.2 83.3 83.7 84.2 
 

Graph of Overall Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Graph of Detailed Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

 

School Improvement – Measure Details (OPTIONAL) 
Percentage of teachers, parents and students indicating that their school and schools in their jurisdiction have improved or stayed 
the same the last three years. 
 Authority Province 
 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Overall 81.2 80.3 78.5 79.7 80.8 79.4 79.9 80.1 80.0 80.6 
Teacher 78.1 79.0 74.0 77.2 77.4 78.2 80.8 80.1 81.1 80.9 
Parent 78.9 77.3 76.0 76.5 79.0 78.1 77.0 77.3 76.2 77.9 
Student 86.6 84.6 85.5 85.5 86.0 81.8 81.8 82.9 82.7 82.9 
 

Graph of Overall Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Graph of Detailed Authority Results (optional) 

 
 

Note: Data values have been suppressed where the number of students or respondents is less than 6. Suppression is marked with an asterisk (*). 

 
 

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall Parent

Student Teacher

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall

0

20

40

60

80

100

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

R
es

ul
t (

%
) 

Overall Parent

Student Teacher



 

1 

  

ATTACHMENT II 



 

2 
 



 
DATE: November 26, 2013 

 
TO: Board of Trustees  

 
FROM:  Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 

 
SUBJECT:  Review of 2012-2013 Superintendent of Schools Area Results 

 
RESOURCE 
STAFF:  

 
Dr. Sandra Stoddard, Director Governance and Strategic Support Services 
 

 
 
ISSUE  
The Annual Education Results Report (AERR) is the District’s yearly accountability summary 
of results to the Province.  The Superintendent of Schools is held responsible for these results 
and will provide a verbal summary of the work of the District reflecting the 2012-2013 
instructional year. 
   
Results Review is the District’s level of accountability where yearly results are reported to the 
Board of Trustees.   DU 310 is the decision unit for the Superintendent of Schools through 
which he oversees the operations of the District. 
 
The summary that will be presented by the Superintendent reflects both the AERR and the 
review of Decision Unit 310.  In this summary, he will touch upon key outcomes and 
accomplishments, identify emerging trends and issues, and highlight strategies underway in the 
District.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
ATTACHMENTS & APPENDICES 
ATTACHMENT I 2012-2013 Results Review and Plan 
 
 
DR:sh 



ATTACHMENT I











Decision Unit: Superintendent of Schools [0310] 2013-2014 Plans DU Administrator: Darrel Robertson

Address: One Kingsway Ave Profile  

© Edmonton Public Schools 1 of 1

Staff FTE Budget
Custodial 0.000000 Salaries $464,906 72%

Exempt 2.200000 Supplies, Equipment and Services $183,895 28%

Support 0.000000 Total $648,801 100%

Teacher 0.000000

Maintenance 0.000000

Total 2.200000

Our Vision
All students will learn to their full potential and develop the ability, passion and imagination to pursue their dreams and contribute to their community.

Our Mission
We work with families and community partners to provide safe, caring, healthy, diverse, inclusive and equitable learning experiences that engage students to achieve their full potential in an
increasingly interdependent world.

Our District's Priorities (2011-2014)
1. Provide supports and programs that will enable all students to complete high school.
2. Deepen students' understanding of equity and empathy as key citizenship traits.
3. Ensure all students and their families are welcomed, respected, accepted and supported in every school.
4. Promote health and wellness for all students and staff.
5. Listen to staff, honour their contributions, and support their opportunities for collaboration, growth and professional development.

Profile
The Superintendent's Decision Unit 310 is comprised of the Superintendent, the Assistant Superintendents of Schools, the Executive Director of Corporate Services and their
executive support staff. The Superintendent is responsible for providing advice and support to the Board as well as ensuring the effective implementation of Board policy. The
Superintendent is responsible for the planning, organizing, directing, controlling, coordinating and evaluating of administrative regulations and sound educational and business
practices to achieve the vision, mission and priorities of the District.



Decision Unit: Superintendent of Schools [0310] 2013-2014 Plans DU Administrator: Darrel Robertson

Address: One Kingsway Ave Plans  

© Edmonton Public Schools 1 of 1

1.  
2.  
3.  
4.  
5.  

District Priorities 2011-2014

Provide supports and programs that will enable all students to complete high school.
Deepen students' understanding of equity and empathy as key citizenship traits.
Ensure all students and their families are welcomed, respected, accepted and supported in every school.
Promote health and wellness for all students and staff.
Listen to staff, honour their contributions, and support their opportunities for collaboration, growth and professional development.

The following SMART (Specific, Measureable, Attainable, Relevant, Time-Framed) goals have been established for the 2013/14 school year (referencing the District's Priority number
that the goal supports).

SMART GOAL#1
 
By June 2014, District high school completion rates and student achievement data will improve, as a result of building capacity and enhancing quality teaching and leading
through a focus on early intervention, literacy, student engagement, successful transitions and collaborative partnerships.

SMART GOAL#2
 
By June 2014, a steering committee, comprised of key internal and external stakeholders, will have developed a framework to support the development  of career pathways
for Edmonton Public Schools.  Career pathways will be designed to enhance the relevance of learning, and guide students on their journey to a successful transition to post
secondary studies and/or the world of work.

SMART GOAL#3
 
By June 2014, the Administration will have developed an infrastructure strategy that identifies timelines and goals to provide equitable access to high quality learning and
working environments for all students and staff. The strategy will respond to growth trends and community needs, address the deferred maintenance deficit, and right size
district space to efficiently meet district short-term and long-term needs.





 

 

DATE: November 26, 2013 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 

SUBJECT: Bereavements 

ORIGINATOR: David Fraser, Executive Director, Corporate Services 

RESOURCE 
STAFF: Cheryl Singer 

REFERENCE: GM.BP – Acknowledgement of Deaths and Bereavements 
 GM.AR – Deaths and Bereavements 
 
 
ISSUE 
To acknowledge the death of two former trustees; Mrs. Rose Rosenberger and Mrs. Jean 
Woodrow, and two current staff members; Mrs. Gail Leslie and Mrs. Karen Harries. 
 
BACKGROUND 

 Mrs. Rose Rosenberger passed away on October 7, 2013, at the age of 67 years. 
 

 She served the District as a Trustee from 1989 through to 1995. Mrs. Rosenberger is survived 
by her husband Ron, and sons Ian and Mark (1973-2012). 

 
 Mrs. Jean Woodrow passed away October 13, 2013, at the age of 83 years. 
 
 Mrs. Woodrow served as Trustee for three terms, October 1992 to October 1995, October 1995 

to October 1998 and October 2001 to October 2004. She also served three terms as the Board 
Vice-Chair. Mrs. Woodrow is survived by her husband Dennis. 

 
 Mrs. Gail Leslie passed away October 15, 2013, at the age of 62 years. 
 
 Mrs. Leslie began her career with Edmonton Public Schools in 1985 as a member of the support 

staff group and held secretarial and administrative assistant positions at Steinhauer, Killarney, 
Outreach Programs, Norwood, Dickinsfield, Windsor Park, Glenrose and Evansdale schools.  
She also held positions within the exempt staff group serving as Executive Secretary in District 
Technology and then Consultant-Support Staff.  At the time of her death she was the Business 
Manager at Hospital School Campuses.  Mrs. Leslie is survived by her husband David, daughter 
Amy Leslie and son James Leslie.   

  
 Mrs. Karen Harries passed away November 7, 2013, at the age of 59 years. 
 
 Mrs. Harries began her career with Edmonton Public Schools in 1977.  She held teaching 

positions at M.E. LaZerte, Avalon and Lynnwood schools.  Mrs. Harries also served at 
Strathcona School and held the positions of teacher and department head.  Mrs. Harries was a 
teacher at Strathcona at the time of her death. Mrs. Harries is survived by husband Bruce, 
daughter Stephanie and son Lucas. 

 

http://www.epsb.ca/policy/gm.bp.shtml
http://www.epsb.ca/policy/gm.ar.shtml


 

 

CURRENT SITUATION 
A floral arrangement has been sent to the family of Mrs. Rosenberger on behalf of the 
Administration and Board of Trustees. 
 
A memorial donation in honour of Mrs. Woodrow has been made on behalf of the 
Administration and Board of Trustees to the Heart and Stroke Foundation. 
 
A memorial donation in honour of Mrs. Leslie has been made to the Heart & Stroke Foundation 
of Alberta on behalf of the Administration and Board of Trustees. 
 
A memorial donation in honour of Mrs. Harries has been made to the Stollery Children’s 
Hospital Foundation. 
 
KEY POINTS 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS & APPENDICES 
N/A 
 
 
 
DF:cls 


	Agenda
	01 - DRAFT Minutes - Board Meeting #27 - September 17, 2013
	02 - DRAFT Minutes - Organizational Board Meeting - November 5, 2013
	03 - Report 1 of the Caucus Committee - November 5, 2013
	04 - Edmonton Public Schools' Combined Three Year Education Plan and Annual Education Results Report
	05 - Review of 2012-2013 Superintendent of Schools Area Results
	06 - Bereavements



